
MEETING: South Area Council
DATE: Friday, 24 February 2017
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Meeting Room 5, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  

Minutes and Notes

2  Minutes of the Meeting of South Area Council held on 2nd December, 2016 
(Sac.24.02.2017/2)  (Pages 3 - 10)

3  Notes of the Ward Alliances (Sac.24.02.2017/3)  (Pages 11 - 28)
Hoyland Milton and Rockingham – held on 28th November, 2016, and 24th 
January, 2017
Darfield – held on 17th November, 2016, and 19th January, 2017
Wombwell – held on 22nd November, 2016

Items for Discussion

4  Kingdom Security (Sac.24.02.2017/4)  

5  Date, Time, and Venue of Future Meetings (Sac.24.02.2017/5)  

Performance

6  Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Sac.24.02.2017/6)  (Pages 29 - 38)

7  Performance Report (Sac.24.02.2017/7)  (Pages 39 - 70)

Items for Decision

8  South Area Council Advice Services (Sac.24.02.2017/8)  (Pages 71 - 140)

To: Chair and Members of South Area Council:-

Councillors Stowe (Chair), Andrews BEM, Coates, Dures, Franklin, Frost, 
Daniel Griffin, Lamb, Markham, Saunders, Shepherd and R. Wraith

Area Council Support Officers:

Diane Lee, South Area Council Senior Management Link Officer
Kate Faulkes, South Area Council Manager
Phil Hollingsworth, Head of Service Stronger Communities
Peter Mirfin, Council Governance Officer

Please contact Peter Mirfin on 01226 773147 or email governance@barnsley.gov.uk
Thursday, 16 February 2017

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: South Area Council
DATE: Friday, 2 December 2016
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Meeting Room, Wombwell Library

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Stowe (Chair), Andrews BEM, Franklin, 
Frost, Daniel Griffin, Lamb, Markham and R. Wraith.

20 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Councillors Franklin and Lamb both declared a non-pecuniary interest in minute 
number 24, due to their positions as directors of Forge Community Partnership.

21 Notes of an Inquorate Meeting of South Area Council Members held on 28th 
October, 2016 (Sac.02.12.2016/2) 

The meeting considered the notes of the inquorate meeting of Members of South 
Area Council, held on 28th October, 2016, as appended.

RESOLVED:-
(i) that the minutes of the South Area Council meeting held on 2nd September, be 

approved as a true and correct record;
(ii) that the notes of Hoyland Milton and Rocking Ward Alliance held on 5th 

September, 2016; Darfield Ward Alliance, held on 29th September, 2016; and 
Wombwell Ward Alliance held on 20th September, 2016 be received.

(iii) That the report on the use of Ward Alliance Funds as considered on 28th 
October, 2016, be received;

(iv) That the Performance Report as considered on 28th October, 2016, be received 
and the progress of commissions be noted;

(v) That the contact details for the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Officer be 
circulated to Elected Members;

(vi) That arrangements be made for C&K Careers to attend the next meeting of the 
Area Council to give the final report on the Summer Internship Programme;

(vii) That the Area Council Manager investigates with Darfield Ward Members how a 
welfare advice session might be provided at Middlecliffe within the overall 
programme of advice provision;

(viii) That the progress of projects under development, as reported on 28th October, 
2016 be noted;

(ix) That the financial position of South Area Council’s commissioning budget, as 
reported on 28th October, 2016, be noted;

(x) That, in respect of the Welfare Rights and Advice project, the Area Council 
Manager develops a draft specification of requirements, timescales and 
costings for the continuation of the project from April, 2017 for further 
consideration by the Area Council.

22 Notes of the following Ward Alliances (Sac.02.12.2016/3) 

The meeting received the notes from the Hoyland Milton, and Rockingham Ward 
Alliance held on 31st October, 2016.

Page 3

Sac.24.02.2017/2



2

RESOLVED that the notes from the Ward Alliance be received.

23 Presentation by C&K Careers (Sac.02.12.2016/4) 

Members received a presentation from Joel Robinson and Katren North from C&K 
Careers on the Summer Holiday Internship programme.

An overview of the programme was provided to Members. It was noted that it was 
aimed at Year 10 students with a week within an employability programme, followed 
by a week of work experience. 

Members noted that 100 placements with employers for South and other Area 
Councils had been sourced with many being local businesses. Following the week of 
work experience some students had been offered apprenticeships or part time work.

From the 2015 cohort from the South Area, it was noted that all those completing the 
programme reported positive changes, in areas such as self-confidence, and all had 
progressed on to positive destinations.  

From the 2016 cohort, all had now progressed to Year 11 and had recently been 
interviewed.  All students had made applications for college, 6th form or 
apprenticeships, and this was ahead of the majority of students.  It was noted that all 
will continue to receive support from C&K Careers until late in 2017.

Members heard how parents of pupils taking part had also been very positive of the 
scheme.

The meeting discussed why numbers had been much below target, and heard of the 
complexities in working with both secondary schools in the South Area.  It was noted 
that networks had been made in both schools, and it was hoped that this would help 
the engagement of students if the programme was repeated.

Members heard of the celebration event held centrally, which was requested by 
students as they made friends with their counterparts in North and North East Areas.  
It was suggested that this showed that the students had built resilience, useful in their 
future learning and careers.

C&K Careers were thanked for their presentation, and the impact of the scheme in 
the South Area.

Members briefly discussed whether the Area Council would run a similar scheme in 
2017. I was agreed to discuss this in more detail in the future taking account of 
finance remaining and the Area Council priorities.

RESOLVED that thanks be given to C&K Careers for their presentation.

24 Performance Report (Sac.02.12.2016/5) 

The Area Council Manager introduced the item, referring to the Performance Report 
previously circulated.

Page 4



3

With regards to the One Stop Shop commission, Members heard how the number of 
appeals that had been supported had increased, and therefore the service was now 
at capacity.  The meeting discussed the potential provision of advice sessions in 
Middlecliffe and a number of options were to be considered, with the preferred option 
being a twilight drop in session.  It was noted that a venue needed to be identified, 
and the ability to hold discussions in confidence was considered of paramount 
importance.

Members discussed the performance of the Tidy Team contract.  The meeting heard 
how there were some gaps in performance information, but this had been largely 
attributable to a change in staff, and it was thought that this would now improve.   A 
number of performance indicators were below target, but it was suggested that this 
due to the time the team had spent attending many summer events.  It was 
suggested that any shortfall would be addressed in the forthcoming quarter.   The 
team had recently recruited two apprentices and would recruit a further two shortly.   

Members noted that the performance against the contract with Kingdom Security for 
Environmental Enforcement was as expected, with no issues.  It was suggested that 
a future meeting of the Area Council receives a presentation, providing an overview 
of the work of Kingdom Security in the Area.

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the report be noted;
(ii) That a future meeting of the Area Council receives a presentation on the work of 

Kingdom Security in the Area.

25 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Sac.02.12.2016/6) 

The Area Council Manager introduced the item.  It was noted that since the papers 
for the meeting were published, further applications had been approved.

Remaining balances were as follows:- Hoyland Milton and Rockingham, around 
£2,200;  Wombwell, around £5,000, and Darfield approximately £18,500.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

26 Update on New Commissions (Sac.02.12.2016/7) 

The Area Council Manager spoke to the report previously circulated.  Members heard 
of the success of the Love Your Block events in Darfield, and noted the number of 
young people engaged.  It was thought a positive model that could be applied to 
other communities.

With regards to the ARC course, a celebration event had been held and Members 
commented on the benefits of the scheme to young people and the positive feedback 
from those engaged.  It was noted that a more formal report with regards to the 
course will be submitted to the Area Council in due course.

Members heard how the Private Sector Housing Management and Enforcement 
Officer was now in post and had met most of the Councillors in the area.  It was 
noted that the officer was being proactive and leafletting to raise the awareness of 
residents, and Members were encouraged to feed in relevant intelligence. The 

Page 5



4

meeting discussed the provision of a body camera for the officer, noting that their 
safety was paramount.  It was acknowledged that all relevant risk assessments had 
been completed, but the option of providing a body camera would be pursued.

Attention was drawn to the current financial position, as outlined in the report, noting 
the amount of finance available to allocate would likely increase slightly due to 
income from fixed penalty notices.

The meeting noted previous discussed regarding tendering for an advice service, 
similar to the ‘One Stop Shop’ currently provided, to commence in April, 2017.  It was 
noted that a review of the Welfare Rights service was currently ongoing and it was 
felt important to incorporate the findings of this into any future service, ensuring that 
centrally provided services complemented those provided by the Area Council.  In 
addition, it was felt important to work closely with Barnsley Clinical Commissioning 
Group to ensure any service took account of the social prescribing work being 
undertaken. 

It was therefore suggested that a waiver to contract procedure rules be sought, in 
order to extend the current ‘One Stop Shop’ provision for a further three months in 
order to take account.

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the progress of projects under development be noted;
(ii) That the current financial position in relation to the South Area Council 

Commissioning Budget for 2016/17 and 2017/18 be noted;
(iii) That approval be given for the Executive Director Communities to complete the 

necessary paperwork to waive contract procedure rules to enable the One Stop 
Shop to be extended until 30th June, 2017 at cost of up to £18,750;

(iv) That £75,000 of the 2017/18 budget to be provisionally allocated to funding an 
advice service in the South Area.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 6



5

APPENDIX
MEETING: South Area Council – Inquorate Meeting
DATE: Friday, 28 October 2016
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Meeting Room, The Hoyland Centre

NOTES OF AN INQUORATE MEETING

Present Councillors Stowe (Chair), Coates, Franklin, Daniel 
Griffin, Markham, Saunders, Shepherd, and R. Wraith

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Councillors Franklin and Shepherd declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 
insofar as this item referred to the Forge Community Partnership, of which they are 
both members.

2 Minutes of the Meeting of South Area Council held on 2nd September, 2016 
(Sac.28.10.2016/2) 

The meeting considered the minutes of South Area Council meeting held on 2nd 
September, 2016.

RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the South Area Council meeting held on 2nd 
September, 2016 be approved as a true and correct record.

3 Notes of the following Ward Alliances (Sac.28.10.2016/3) 

The meeting received the notes from the following meetings:-

 Hoyland Milton and Rockingham held on 5th September, 2016; 
 Darfield held on 29th September, 2016; and
 Wombwell held on 20th September, 2016.

RECOMMENDED that the notes from the Ward Alliances be received.

4 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Sac.28.10.2016/4) 

Members received a report which provided details of the latest expenditure from the 
Ward Alliance Funds.  It was expected that the allocations would be spent up within 
the year, with the exception of Wombwell, where a carry forward of up to £13,500 
was anticipated.  

RECOMMENDED that the report on the use of the Ward Alliance Funds be received.

5 Performance Report (Sac.28.10.2016/5) 

The Area Council Manager introduced a report giving an overview of the 
performance of activity commissioned by the Area Council.  The meeting noted that 
the performance information for the Kingdom and the Clean and Tidy projects was 
not up to date as contract meetings were not due until November.  

Page 7



6

The meeting noted some variations to the Clean and Tidy project, to provide for 
activity during evenings and weekends.  The report also incorporated case study 
information in respect of the Kingdom contract and detailed information on the 
summer internship programme, which was complete except of the celebration event.  
Communication with Kirk Balk Academy continued in relation to their engagement 
with the project and Members noted the need to secure better use of the community 
space at the Academy.

The meeting noted that the reduced throughput for the one stop advice sessions was 
mainly due to fewer sessions being held over the summer months.  Feedback forms 
from advice sessions had indicated that word of mouth was the best way to spread 
information about the sessions and this was being considered, together with a range 
of other issues in relation to taking forward the project.  The meeting noted the 
difficulties that residents of Middlecliffe had in accessing the advice sessions held in 
Darfield and discussed the need for further consideration of ways that accessibility 
could be improved.

The meeting noted the delay in taking forward the Private Housing Enforcement 
project, but that an officer would now be in post from 31st October on a 12 month 
secondment.  The Area Manager already had information on areas of concern 
previously raised by Members, but any further areas for attention should be referred 
through to her by Members.  It was hoped that arrangements could be made for the 
officer to attend Ward briefings as part of her induction.  

RECOMMENDED:-

(i) that the report be received and the progress for commissions be noted;

(ii) that contact information for the Private Housing Enforcement Officer be 
circulated to Elected Members;

(iii) that arrangements be made for C&K Careers to attend the next meeting of the 
Area Council to give the final report on the summer internship programme; and

(iv) that the Area Manager investigate with Darfield Ward Members how a welfare 
advice session might be provided at Middlecliffe within the overall programme 
of drop-in sessions.

6 Update on new commissions (Sac.28.10.2016/6) 

The Area Manager introduced a report giving an update on the development of a 
range of South Area Council projects agreed in October 2015, outlining the current 
financial position for 2016/17 and 2017/18, and seeking Members’ consideration of 
the future of the Welfare Rights and Advice provision across the South Area Council 
from April 2017.

RECOMMENDED:-

(i) that the progress of the projects under development as outlined in Section 3 of 
the report now submitted be noted;

Page 8



7

(ii) that the current financial position of the South Area Council’s commissioning 
budget for 2016/17 and 2017/18 be noted; and

(iii) that, in respect of the Welfare Rights and Advice project, the Area Manager 
develop a draft specification, timescales and costings for the continuation of 
this project from April 2017 for further consideration at the Area Council’s 
meeting in December 2016.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hoyland Milton and Rockingham Wards

Notes of meeting

Monday 28 November 2016

The Hoyland Centre

Present:

Councillor Chris Lamb Rockingham Ward (Chair)
Councillor Jim Andrews Rockingham Ward
Councillor Robin Franklin Hoyland Milton Ward
Councillor Tim Shepherd Hoyland Milton Ward

Janet Cartwright Friends of Elsecar Park
Ian Warhurst Hemingfield Action Group
Neil Spencer Forge Community Partnership
John Lang Job Club
Phil Anderson Tesco
Ben Merryman Tesco
Danielle Gill Tesco
Fiona Tennyson BMBC Tasking Officer
Dawn Grayton

Apologies:

Councillor Emma Dures
Councillor Mick Stowe
Joan Whittaker
Andy Hodgkinson
Anne Sanderson
Dave Graham
Revd Alison Earl

1. Welcomes and Introductions.

2. Derek Bell – Resilience Plans. 
 Unfortunately Derek was unable to attend.  
 

BMBC South Area Team

Rockingham Ward
Hoyland Milton Ward
Federation of Tenants and Residents
TocH
Neighbourhood Watch
Berneslai Homes
Holy Trinity  

3. Notes from the Ward Alliance meeting held on 31 October 2016.

The minutes were accepted as a true recording of the proceedings. Councillor Andrews wanted it 
noting that in relation to the funding application for Jump School, his grand-daughter is a member of 
the choir.

Page 11

Sac.24.02.2017/3



2

4. Tidy Team Update.

In the run up to Christmas everything has gone well. There was a duplication in teams because the 
Neighbourhood Services Team arrived on the same day as the Tidy Team for the preparation at the 
Cenotaph.

The two apprentices are due to start their level 2 training in horticulture. Advertising will commence 
in January 2017 for young apprentices.

There has been a steady increase with volunteers and in engaging with schools.

Shortwood Path is now clear, one of the volunteers was impressed at how hard working the Tidy 
Team are, they never stop.

Thanks were given to the Tidy Team particularly for the work done installing the Christmas Tree in 
Hoyland.

5. Promotion of Ward Alliance Funding.

Funds are quite low, there will be some money to go back into the pot because not everything was 
spent that was allocated to the Frosty event.

6. Ongoing Projects.

Celebration Event.  This event was a success and the representative from kirk Balk though it was an 
excellent event, all the schools in the area have expressed interest in the event.

One of the Stars of Hoyland has said that they do not want their award, as it is for environment al 
work Tesco said they could arrange a volunteer day to help the winner as recognition for work done. 
It was agreed the award winner will be contacted.

The event was on budget and all the banners etc will be stored at Tinkers Café for next year.

Slipper Exchange. Still ongoing so far 380 recipients have had slippers, with additional pairs being 
donated to residents in sheltered accommodation who may not receive anything this Christmas. An 
evaluation exercise will be done in February/March 2017 which should provide tangible evidence on 
the success of the project.

It was agreed that we need to consider projects for next year to give time to improve planning 
processes.

7. New Projects.

Hemingfield School – Ready, Steady, Play. This application was unsuccessful as it was felt the school 
should have a budget to provide the resources requested and if allowed it would set a precedent for 
all the schools in the area.  The group are encouraged to contact the 0 to 5 team at Jump Family 
Centre because they have a budget for this type of work. The decision was unanimous.

Page 12



3

8. Any other business.

Tesco bags for help. If you go in store a token will be given to you to drop in a tub, the tub with the 
highest tokens will receive funding so please put it in the one with the S71 postcode as that is the 
most local organisation. 

Neighbourhood Food Collection scheme. Still needs promoting to suitable community groups.

9. Date of next meeting.

Tuesday 24 January 2017 at Hoyland Centre. 

  

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Hoyland Milton and Rockingham Wards 

Notes of meeting held on Tuesday 24th January 2017

The Hoyland Centre.

Present

Cllr Chris Lamb Rockingham Ward (Chair)
Cllr Tim Shepherd Hoyland Milton
Cllr Mick Stowe Hoyland Milton

Pat Gregory Walderslade Surgery
John Lang Hoyland Job Club
Janet Cartwright Friends of Elsecar Park
Anne Sanderson Neighbourhood Watch
Danielle Gill Tesco
Rob Hargreaves Berneslai Homes
Tim Fuller Tesco
Ben Merryman Tesco
Dawn Grayton BMBC South Area Team

Apologies

Cllr Jim Andrews Rockingham Ward
Cllr Emma Dures Rockingham Ward

Neil Spencer Forge Community Partnership
Ian Warhurst HAG
Andy Hodgkinson TocH
Joan Whittaker Tenants and Residents Federation
Fiona Tennyson BMBC

Councillor Lamb chaired the meeting.

1. Welcome and apologies.

2. The Chair welcomed Simon Dobby, Head of Corporate Health, Safety and Emergency Resilience.

Community resilience is a national Government initiative which started 12 months ago. It looks at 
communities using their own resources and what the area needs. Community resilience plans 
compliment emergency services and Barnsley Council own plans and do not replace work done by 
the Council.

The resilience plans help to prioritise the areas to deploy services, the Council does not provide sand 
bags but the aims of these talks are to identify buildings that can be used as rest centres and contact 
details of key holders, identify volunteers to provide basic services such as meet and greet and 
provide cups of tea and identify vulnerable people who may need additional services. 

Page 15



2

The alliance members concluded that they require further discussion. This item will be carried 
forward to the next agenda.

3. Tidy Team Update. No update was given at this meeting.

4. Promotion of Ward Alliance Funding.

Discussed how much money was currently been held in the Ward Alliance Fund. It was considered 
that as an alliance we need to be encouraging groups to look at external funders and not rely on 
Ward Alliance Funding as there are other funding opportunities out there such as bags for help and 
the big lottery. It was generally felt the Love Where You Live newsletter was not of great benefit for 
funding opportunities because a lot of the deadlines are too tight for most groups to put a bid 
together. It needs to be raised at the Area Chair meeting.  This item is to be carried forward to the 
first meeting of the new financial year when it may be necessary to put a working party together. 

5. Ongoing Projects.  No update was given at this meeting.

6.  New Projects. 

Guys and Dolls – agreed

Birdwell Watercolour Group - agreed

7. Any other business.

Anti-social behaviour in the Tesco store is increasing, youths are throwing stones and starting to set 
fires, there is growing concern about colleagues and customers safety. Advised to contact tasking 
officer and Charlotte Agnew at the Komplex.

Councillor Tim Shepherd notified the Ward Alliance that Richard Sullivan had recently passed away. 
He had been a long-time volunteer at Elsecar Park. 

8. Date of next meeting Hoyland Centre Tuesday 21 March 2017 at 5:00pm.

Page 16



Darfield Ward Alliance
Notes of meeting held Thursday 17th November 2016 @ 4.00pm

At Darfield Community Centre

Present: Cllr Caroline Saunders, Cllr Dorothy Coates, Geoff Hutchinson, Margaret Barlow, 
Colin Ward, Brian Moore, Tanya Dickinson (Community Development Officer), Michael 
Fenna, Barbara Tindle (Secretary)          
In Attendance: Zoe Ellis-Georgiou

1.  Introductions and Apologies 

Caroline welcomed Zoe Ellis-Georgiou and apologies received from Cllr Pauline 
Markham and David Hildred.

2.  One Stop Shop – Zoe Ellis-Georgiou 

Zoe Ellis-Georgiou gave a brief outline of her role and that of her colleague Phil Beer 
and of the success of the One-Stop-Shop.  They work from Darfield Children’s 
Centre, Wombwell Library and Hoyland Library and can sign post clients to relevant 
agencies if necessary.  They provide friendly, free and confidential advice on issues 
such as debt, housing and benefits issues, council tax, tax credits, state pensions and 
much more. They’re client feedback is very good and they have extended funded until 
March 2017.  Caroline thanked Zoe for attending.

3.  Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising 

The minutes were agreed

 The Gala money has been transferred to the Christmas Tree event

 A meeting to discuss the issue of litter is still to be arranged.  It was suggested 
that Parks be invited to this also.

 Bellbrooke Event – Tanya gave a brief update on how successful the day went 
and a total of 17 bags of rubbish were collected.  Both adults and children 
enjoyed the activities and food and it was suggested other activities would be 
welcome in the park. Paint for the railings that surround the park has been 
bought and another day will need to be arranged for this activity.

 Darfield Cricket Club – Both the banner and the street clean have been 
arranged for November.

Page 17



4.  Ward Alliance Fund 

An up-to-date Ward Alliance Fund Balance Sheet was viewed by members.  

Darfield Cricket Club – Junior Cricket Winter Programme £660

After a brief discussion concerns were raised with how many of the children were 
from outside the Darfield area.  

It was agreed to contact the Cricket Club and ask what proportion of children were 
from outside the area and deduct this percentage.  The members were happy to fund 
the project for Darfield children.  Action:  Tanya to contact the Cricket Club.

Darfield Youth Group – Time for Tea £420

Dorothy declared and interest and left the room.  After a brief discussion concerns 
were raised about the age range of who would be invited to the event.  They agreed to 
fund the application in full with a suggestion that local elderly people from Darhaven 
be considered an invitation.

5.  Ward Alliance Project Updates   

 Cenotaph – A meeting to be arranged between Parks, Tanya, Colin & Dorothy
 Winter Warmers – to be revisited in June 2017 with the aim of delivering in 

September/October 2017.
 Darfield Christmas Tree – Geoff gave a brief update.  The event will be held 

on Thursday 1st December 2016 at the Maurice Dobson Museum at 4 – 6 pm.  
The Christmas Tree is ordered, there will be a Father Christmas, a present for 
each child, they can write a letter to Father Christmas and children from All 
Saints Academy will be singing festive songs and refreshments will be served.  
Volunteers for the day would be appreciated.

 Community Flood Plans – Tanya updated the Alliance.  The plans are almost 
there.  Tanya has met with Darfield Bridge Flood Group who are exploring the 
idea of distributing their flood plan at an information event in June which 
would also mark the 10 year anniversary of the big flood.

 Dorothy put forward the suggestion of purchasing a number of defibs for the 
community.  Caroline added that the certificates of those who have undertaken 
first aid training will now be ready for renewing – the 2 suggestions 
complimenting each other.  It was decided to consider this project idea at a 
later date.

6.  Alliance Priorities 

After a successful meeting in October, Tanya compiled a draft copy of the priorities 
for the Alliance members and a further meeting has been arranged for Thursday 15th 
December at the Community Centre at 4 pm where the Alliance can finalise their 
priorities.  In the meantime, members are asked to think of any further comments / 
project ideas and feed these into Tanya by Friday 2nd December.

Page 18



7.  Any other business 

Tanya asked for article suggestions for the next Community Magazine.  After a brief 
discussion suggestions were: The launch of the History Society Book, Darfield 
Christmas Tree Event, Time for Tea project and the Cenotaph project with a request 
for volunteers.  Using the magazine as an opportunity to consult on the change of 
priorities was also discussed.

8. Date of next meeting

 Thursday 19th January 2017, 4pm at Darfield Community Centre.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Darfield Ward Alliance
Notes of meeting held Thursday 19th January 2017 @ 4.00pm

At Darfield Community Centre

Present: Cllr Caroline Saunders, Cllr Pauline Markham, Cllr Dorothy Coates, Colin Ward, 
Brian Moore, David Hildred, Tanya Dickinson (Community Development Officer), Michael 
Fenna, Barbara Tindle (Secretary)          

1.  Introductions and Apologies 

Apologies received from Margaret Barlow

2.  Minutes of last meeting and matters arising
The minutes were agreed

 A meeting with Parks with regards to litter is to be arranged
 A ‘paint the railings day’ at Bellbrooke park area has been arranged for Friday 

24th February 2017, 10 am -12 noon. It is supported by the Tidy Team, 
residents to be invited and any volunteers on the day would be appreciated.  

3.   WA Fund – Balance Sheet and Applications received 

Tanya gave a brief outline on the balance sheet. 
Darfield Cricket Club £594 – The decision to award 90% was ratified
Low Valley Art Group £300
After a brief discussion, it was agreed to fund the application in full.
DWA - Darfield Cenotaph £3070
Tanya gave a brief outline of the stage 1 project and is waiting for a second quote. 
After discussion, it was agreed to fund the project subject to the second quote not 
being more than £3070.
DWA - Community First Aid Training £500
Caroline gave a brief outline, places for between 10-12 people on a 6-hour day course 
with a valid certificate.   Date to be arranged.  After a brief discussion, it was agreed 
to fund the project in full.

4.  Ward Alliance Project Updates   

 Darfield Christmas Tree – A successful event with father Christmas switching 
the lights of the tree on and giving presents out, carol singing from Darfield 
school children and warm beverages were served. The Alliance would like to 
thank Geoff Hutchinson and all his volunteers for making the event successful.

 Darfield Cenotaph – Tanya updated to Alliance.  A meeting before Christmas 
with Andy Nixon regarding the trees within the area was discussed.  A clean-
up day under the umbrella of The Great British Clean Up has been arranged 
for Saturday 4th March 2017 between 9 am -12 noon.  It will be supported by 
the Tidy Team and volunteers are welcome.

Page 21



2

 Flood Plans – Final amendments to the Darfield Bridge flood plans are being 
put in place. An information event to be organised in June at the Darfield 
Cadet Club where the plan and the emergency flood kits can be handed out.  
Tanya to arrange a meeting with the Low Valley group to complete their flood 
plans
Action: Tanya

 Healthy Lifestyles Project – Caroline gave a brief outline regarding taster 
sessions on nutrition, exercise and living a healthy lifestyle to the Ward.
Action: Caroline

 Dorothy and Colin are working on putting together an application for 3 
planters for Middlecliffe.  Tanya was asked to start the process of obtaining 
the relevant permissions from Highways.  Highways has also been asked to 
quote for improvement works to ‘the ring’ at the junction of Nanny Marr Road 
and Doncaster Road so that it is much more manageable for volunteers to 
maintain moving forward.  Action: Dorothy, Colin, Tanya

5.  Alliance Priorities – The Alliance discussed where consultations could be held 
regarding the Alliance Priorities.  Caroline to take forms to the Library (groups & 
members of the public).  Pauline to take forms to the Community Centre (groups) 
Michael to take forms to Billingley Parish Council.  Tanya to contact Alan Hayes 
(Houghton Main Football Club) with regards to contacting people is his area. Other 
suggestions to hold consultations were Darfield Children Centre, Doctors, Dentists, 
Podiatrists within the area. 

6. Any other business 

Tanya informed the Alliance that the Community Magazine will have information 
regarding the Darfield History Book, the Bellbrooke Event, plans for the Cenotaph 
and a full-page consultation on the Alliance new priorities. The magazine goes out to 
all properties within the Darfield Ward the first week in February.

Tanya inform the Alliance about the ‘Great British Clean Up’ that is taking place 
between Friday 3rd and Sunday 5th March and is a national campaign to encourage 
everyone to do their bit to help clean up their local area.  In Darfield work is planned 
for Friday 3rd at the Houghton Miners Memorial Wheel, 10am until 12 noon with the 
Cenotaph work day taking place on the Saturday morning.  Fitzwilliam Road was 
highlighted as an area in need of a tidy up.  Tanya to speak to Neighbourhood 
Services to see what can be done.  Billingley Parish Council intend to hold a Love 
Billingley clean-up day on the Sunday. 

Page 22



3

Potential dates for the DWA meetings to be confirmed: 

Thursday 18th May 2017 @  4 pm                                                                                             
Thursday 13th July 2017 @ 4 pm                                                                                                     
Thursday 21st September 2017 @ 4 pm                                                                                                                   
Thursday 23 November 2017 @ 4 pm

7.   Date of next meeting 

Thursday 16th March 2017 @ 4pm at Darfield Community Centre

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Wombwell Community Alliance

Held in Library at 6pm on 22/11/16

Present

Cllr Rob Frost Chair
Cllr Dick Wraith Vice Chair
Brian Whitaker Treasurer
Amanda Bradshaw BMBC
Sara Brautigam Secretary
Brenda Eastwood
Graham Wright
Cllr Daniel Griffrin 
Joan Whitaker We Love Wombwell
Peter Jones
Margret Morgan
Sabeena Chavan 
Andy Flemming ESOL 
Sarah Harrison Housing 
Alan Taylor
Jola Walker Bernslai Holmes 

1. Apologies
None 

2.  Minutes of last meeting and Matters Arising

The minutes were recorded as a true recorded. 

3. Presentation from Andy Flemming ESOL

In the better Barnsley shop has around 20-25 students twice a week.
Classes cost £2 a week for a 90 minute class.
At the start in Wombwell during the week there was 16 students, however due to shift patterns and the light 
levels they changed the date to Saturdays which improved attendances. 
The Alliance gave the group £500 to encourage Asylum seekers however there has been no takers. 
Due to there being no takers for the Asylum seekers classes the Alliance agreed that the money could be 
used for other purposes. This to include going into schools and offering chances to bring a child for free to 
try and encourage more users.

4. Presentation from Sarah Harrison about housing.

Works with the privately rented housing. 
There has been 16 reported issues in Wombwell that still need to be addressed. 
Since been in post (3 months) already issued a community protection notice.

5. Principle Towns

Significant investment into Barnsley Town Centre
 £5m capital investment focussed on strengthening town centres / high streets: 

 Quality Public Realm
Page 25



 Shopfront Schemes
 Business Security
 Business Incentives
 Transport improvements
 Car parking improvements
 Low maintenance public realm i.e. curbs, bollards
 Acquisition of buildings / land delivering economic benefits

ACTION: Amanda to send councils priorities along with the Alliances priorities. 

6. Great British Clean up

Remedy to help with the clear up, also the Cubs for the Friday clean up.
Amanda has contacted Netherwood as primary choice for helping with the clean-up, there has been no 
current contact, if that continues the second choice would be Kings Oak.
Look at cleaning the car parks and snickets.
ACTION: Tell the press what the groups are doing to try and encourage more volunteers, these include 
The Chronical, Toby Foster and Dearne FM

7. Luncheon Club

The sight is ready for the contractors to go in, the site has been re-wired and just needs tiling.
Set up a steering group with ex-officio members so if a change they will still be eligible.
Members to include: 

 Councillor Frost
 Councillor Wraith
 Councillor Griffin 
 Judith Blackhurst (Age Well)
 Margaret Morgan 
 Brenda Eastwood
 Barbara Eastwood
 Barbara
 Father Martain
8. Christmas Market Update

Santa’s grotto look very pretty and the event was well attended, so much so they ran out of presents and 
needed to buy more. 
Danny Oaks from Capital FM turned the lights on, and all the lights worked.
The revised layout worked well.
The Alliance would like to thank the Tidy Team for all their hard work cleaning up after the event.
Wombwell is now growing its own Christmas tree that will be planted in the spring and last for many years.

9. Sloppy Slippers

Event to take place on Friday 3rd February between 10am and 2pm. 
The Tidy Team have dropped leaflets off around the area.
11 agencies coming on the day.
Advertised in The Chronical and on Dearne FM
To ensure that the members are from the Wombwell area a name and address will be taken.

10. Treasures Report

Cash in the bank is £16,935.43 however £15,597.94 is ring fenced for other projects.
There is also £4469.76 that the Alliance needs to think of new projects for.Page 26



11. Tidy Team Update

There are new volunteers joining the team and 2 new apprentices.
Done a lot of good work within the Wombwell area.

12. Funding Application

Wombwell Ward Alliance bid for £72 for a disabled car parking sign. Approved.

A.O.B.
The railings in the park are needing to be painted however we are looking at using community payback to 
do the work.
Also look at moving the fences and putting in A frames to try and stop motorbikes going into the park.

Next Meeting
Tuesday 21st March 6pm
Monday 15th May
Tuesday 11th July
Wednesday 20th September
Thursday 16th November

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



2016/17 WARD FUNDING ALLOCATIONS

For 2016/17 each Ward will have an allocation of £10,000 Ward Alliance Fund.  

50% of the funding requires a match-funding element of volunteer time that directly relates 
to the project in question, or other match funding resources (such as free room hire or 
donations of goods and equipment).  This reflects the fact that the fund is intended to 
support volunteering and social action in our communities.

50% can be used for initiatives that have no volunteer element – such as the purchase and 
installation of benches, hanging baskets or other street furniture.

Area Councils have the option to allocate up to £20,000 from the Area Council budget to 
their Ward Alliance.  This is discretionary to each Area Council, and Area Council’s may also 
choose not to allocate any funding to ward level.

The carry-forward of remaining balances of the 2015/16 Ward Alliance Fund will be 
combined and added to the 2016/17 Allocation, to be managed as a single budget with the 
above conditions.

All decisions on the use of this funding need to be approved through the Ward Alliance.  

DARFIELD WARD ALLIANCE

For the 2016/17 financial year the Ward Alliance has the following available budget.

£10,000 base allocation

£7,260 carried forward from 2015/16

£10,000 devolved from Area Council

£27,260 total available funding

Project Allocation Match funding 
element of 
allocation

Non Match funding 
allocation 
remaining

£13,630.00

Allocation 
Remaining

£27,260.00

Darfield Cricket 
Club - School 
Street, Street 
Cleans

£2000.00 £11,630.00 £25,260.00

Houghton Main 
Miners Welfare 

£1276.80 £10,353.20 £23,983.20

Page 29

Sac.24.02.2017/6



Sports & Social 
Club - Ground 
Maintenance 
Project

Friends of 
Darfield Library = 
Library Children's 
Activity sessions

£410.00 £9,943.20 £23,573.20

Focus Group - 
Healthy Active 
Lifestyles

£420.00 £420.00 £9,943.20 £23,153.20

Billingley Village 
Community 
Association Ltd - 
Bllingley Village 
Get Together

£450.00 £450.00 £9,943.20 £22,703.20

Darfield Bingo 
Club - 
Sustainability of 
Darfield Bingo 
club

£600.00 £600.00 £9,943.20 £22,103.20

Darfield Summer 
Gala 2016

£500.00 £500.00 £9,943.20 £21,603.20

Darfield History 
Society 

£650.00 £650.00 £9,943.20 £20,953.20

Houghton Main 
FC - Maintenance 
of team facilities

£600.00 £600.00 £9,943.20 £20,353.20

Barnsley Leaders 
Junior Basketball 
Club - basketball 
opportunities

£200.00 £200.00 £9,943.20 £20,153.20

Darfield Area 
Amenity Society 
Ltd - A Christmas 

£500.00 £500.00 £9,943.20 £19,653.20

Page 30



tree for Darfield

Darfield WA - 
Love your street  
Bellborrok Ave & 
Rose Ave

£250.00 £250.00 £9,943.20 £19,403.20

Ward Alliance 
Quarter 1 & 2 
Bursary payment

£250.00 £250.00 £9,943.20 £19,153.20

Darfield Youth 
Group - Time for 
tea

£420.00 £420.00 £9,943.20 £18,733.20

Darfield Cricket 
Club - Junior 
cricket winter 
programme

£594.00 £594.00 £9,943.20 £18,139.20

Ward Alliance 
room hire

£120.00 £9,823.20 £18,019.20

DWA - First Aid 
Course

£546.00 £9,277.20 £17,473.20

Low Vallery Art 
Group - 
Community Art 
memory boards

£300.00 £8,977.20 £17,173.20

 

Page 31



HOYLAND MILTON & ROCKINGHAM WARD ALLIANCE

For the 2016/17 financial year the Ward Alliance has the following available budget.

£20,000 base allocation

£25,117 carried forward from 2015/16

£20,000 devolved from Area Council

£65,117 total available funding

Project Allocation Match funding 
element of 
allocation

Non Match funding 
allocation 
remaining

£32,558.50

Allocation 
Remaining

£65,117.00

Friends of 
Greenfields - 
Health Active 
Lifestyles

£2320.00 £2320.00 £32,558.50 £62,797.00

Friends of Elsecar 
Park - Spring & 
Summer Floral 
Display

£4000.00 £4000.00 £32,558.50 £58,797.00

Forge 
Community 
Partnership - 
Hoyland Works 
4U

£5990.00 £5990.00 £32,558.50 £52,807.00

Jump PTFA - 
Healthy Active 
Lifestyles

£2500.00 £2500.00 £32,558.50 £50,307.00

Hoyland 
Common Action 
Group - Hoyland 
Cap

£8390.00 £8390.00 £32,558.50 £41,917.00

Dream Team  - 
Building a Legacy

£1416.72 £1416.72 £32,558.50 £40,500.28

Page 32



62nd Barnsley 
Brownies - 
Elsecar - 
Purchase of 
outdoor/indoor 
games 
equipment

£322.00 £322.00 £32,558.50 £40,178.28

Hoyland Library 
arts & crafts & 
reading groups - 
After School & 
Holiday fun

£641.19 £641.19 £32,558.50 £39,537.09

Forge 
Community 
Partnership - 
Blacker Hill 
consultation

£1800.00 £30,758.50 £37,737.09

Young Families 
Group - Healthy 
Lifestyles

£1900.00 £1,900.00 £30,758.50 £35,837.09

Birdwell Primary 
Parents Group - 
Healthy Lifestyles

£1900.00 £1500.00 £28,858.50 £33,937.09

Youth 
Partnership - 
Rockingham CIC

£7225.00 £21,633.50 £26,712.09

Hoyland 
Community Choir 
- Community 
Choir

£1500.00 £1500 £21,633.50 £25,212.09

Rockingham 
Brass Band -
Music workshop 
& refurb of 
instruments

£1500.00 £1500 £21,633.50 £23,712.09

Page 33



Birdwell 
Methodist kids 
club - Games & 
activities 5-7 year 
olds

£946.23 £946.23 £21,633.50 £22,765.86

Phoenix Ladies 
Group = Group 
speakers & 
activities

£1000.00 £1000.00 £21,633.50 £21,765.86

Birdwell 
Volunteers - 
Christmas and 
community 
gardens

£880.00 £880.00 £21,633.50 £20,885.86

Hoyland 
Common Action 
Group - Sloppy 
Slippers

£10000.00 £11,633.50 £10,885.86

Parks Services - 
Cenotaph & town 
centre flagpoles

£925.00 £10,708.50 £9,960.86

59th (Birdwell) 
Brownies - 
Residential 
Activity

£1500.00 £1500.00 £10,708.50 £8,460.86

Stars of Hoyland £3000.00 £3000.00 £10,708.50 £5,460.86

Jump Primary 
School Choir - 
Young Voices 
School Choir

£951.00 £951.00 £10,708.50 £4,509.86

Frosty Event £1,000.00 £500.00 £10,208.50 £3,509.86

Owd Martha's 
Yard - Christmas 
in Hoyland

£400.00 £400.00 £10,208.50 £3,109.86

Page 34



Forge CP - 
Autumn planting 
at the Cenotaph

£750.00 £750.00 £10,208.50 £2,359.86

Pride in the Jump 
Park

£100.00 £100.00 £10,208.50 £2,259.86

Rockingham CCC 
- Junior Winter 
Training

£1,350.00 £0.00 £8,930.50 £909.86

The Jubilee 
Singers

£500.00 £500.00 £8,930.50 £409.86

WOMBWELL WARD ALLIANCE

For the 2016/17 financial year the Ward Alliance has the following available budget.

£10,000 base allocation

£10,754 carried forward from 2015/16

£10,000 devolved from Area Council

£30,754.00 total available funding

Project Allocation Match funding 
element of 
allocation

Non Match funding 
allocation 
remaining

£10,377.00

Allocation 
Remaining

£30,754.00

Wombwell 
Neighbourhood 
Watch - Safe & 
Secure in your 
community

£1,168.80 £1,168.80 £29,585.20

18th Barnsley 
Senior Section - 
Equipment 
storage and unit 
identity

£412.80 £412.80 £29,172.40

Page 35



Friends of 
Wombwell 
Cemetery - 
Wombwell 
Community 
Chapel

£1,024.74 £1,024.74 £28,147.66

Friends of 
Wombwell 
Library - 
Children's Crafts 
& Activity 
Sessions

£400.00 £400.00 £10,377.00 £27,747.66

Kings Oaks 
Parenting Group 
- Healthy Active 
Lifestyles

£1895.00 £1895.00 £10,377.00 £25,852.66

Barnsley Leaders 
Junior Basketball 
Club - Basketball 
Opportunities 7-
13yr olds

£200.00 £200.00 £10,377.00 £25,652.66

Wombwell Ward 
Alliance - Spring 
2017 Hanging 
baskets

£1,440.00 £0 £8,937.00 £24,212.66

Ward Alliance 
Quarter 1 & 2 
Bursary payment

£250.00 £250.00 £8,937.00 £23,962.66

Sloppy slippers £4,900.00 £1,500.00 £5,537.00 £19,062.66

Wombwell 
Sporting Athletics 
Club - Sport for 
all ages

£936.82 £936.82 £5,537.00 £18,125.84

Page 36



ESOL - English 
conversational 
classes

£648.00 £648.00 £5,537.00 £17,477.84

Friends of 
Wombwell Park - 
Park Games

£1,800.00 £1,800.00 £5,537.00 £15,677.84

Corpus Christi 
Parish - Lunch 
club

£11,208.80 £11,208.80 £5,537.00 £4,469.04

Ward Alliance 
Quarter 3 
Bursary payment

£125.00 £0 £5,412.00 £4,344.04

Wombwell Ward 
Alliance - 
Disabled Parking 
sign

£60.00 £0 £5,352.00 £4,284.04

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH AREA COUNCIL

Performance Management Report

February 2017

Page 39

Sac.24.02.2017/7



INTRODUCTION

Table 2 below shows the projects currently under development. 

Service Provider Contract 
Value/length

Contract 
start date

Recommissioning 
date if applicable

Improving the Local 
Economy

Business survey 
& courses for 
local businesses

Northern 
College, BBIC & 

Emergency 
Response 
training

£4,000 for 
survey 

£20,000 max 
for courses

Sept 2014 for 
survey

Summer 
2015 for 
courses

Project not 
recommissioned 
due to poor take-
up on courses

Improving our Local 
Environment

Tidy Team to 
work alongside 
community on 
environmental 
projects

Forge 
Community 

Partnership/Anvil 
Community 

Interest 
Company

£195,750 
per annum 
until March 
2017 with a 

further 1 
year + 1 year 

if funding 
available

4th August 
2014 for 2 

years

Contract 2 
started 1st 

August 2016

Tidy Team 2 
contract 
(including 
Apprenticeship 
costs) with Forge 
C/Partnership 
started 1st 
August 2016 

Improving our Local 
Environment

Environmental 
enforcement for 
littering, dog 
fouling & 
parking 
enforcement

Kingdom Security £ 132,000
1 year & 
further 

extension to 
31/03/16

4th August 
2014

Contract 2  
started 1st 
April 2016

Contract 2 now 
running from 
April 2016 with 
funding agreed 
to run to March 
2017

Access to Local 
Information & 

Advice

Provide 
community 
based welfare 
rights & citizens’ 
advice session

Barnsley Citizens’ 
Advice Bureau & 
BMBC Welfare 
Rights Service

£145,000
2 years @ 

£72,500 per 
year

2nd June 2014 Extension in 
place to 30th 
June 2017 – 
recommissioning 
in progress

Opportunities for 
Young People

Summer 
Internship 
Programme

C&K Careers
 

£45,000
20 months 
(includes 
follow up 

time)

9th March 
2015

Contract 2 
started 1st 

March 2016

Contract 2 for 
2016 cohort s 
runs March 2016 
– Nov 2017
Contract 1 ended 
November 2016 

IMPROVING 
OUR LOCAL 

ENVIRONMENT

OPPORTUNITIES 
FOR YOUNG 

PEOPLE

ACCESS TO 
LOCAL 

INFORMATION 
& ADVICE

CHANGING THE 
RELATIONSHIP 

COUNCIL & 
COMMUNITY

IMPROVING 
THE LOCAL 
ECONOMY

South Area Council Priorities

Page 40



Service Provider Contract 
Value/length

Contract start 
date

Recommissioning 
date if applicable

Improving our Local 
Environment

Provision of 
signs for 
cleaned up sites 
‘Maintained by 
Volunteers’ 

Taylor made 
Signs

£375.00 100 Signs 
delivered 1st 
April 2016 & 
will be 
erected by 
Tidy Team 
during April & 
May 2016

Currently being 
put up by Tidy 
Team across the 
4 wards in a 
variety of 
settings decided 
by Tidy Team 
Steering Group

Opportunities for 
Young People

Provision of 39 
week Fire Cadet 
course for 16 
young people

South Yorkshire 
Fire & Rescue 
Service

£12,157.81 South 
Yorkshire Fire 
have advised 
that there is 
insufficient 
time to set up 
before March 
2017 

Not applicable – 
will not run
South Area 
Council have 
agreed second 
ARC course to 
run October 
2016 instead

Opportunities for 
Young People

Provision of 2 
week Achieving 
Respect & 
Confidence 
(ARC) courses 
for 14 young 
people at risk of 
offending

South Yorkshire 
Fire & Rescue 
Service

£10,000 Course 1 
delivered  
week of 13th 
June 2016

Course 2 to 
be held 
October 2016

Not applicable – 
no current plans 
to recommission

Opportunities for 
Young People

Youth Asset 
Mapping 
project & survey

Forge 
Community 
Partnership

£5,000 Survey & 
events now 
completed – 
report will be 
presented to 
South Area 
Council in 
June 2016

Not applicable – 
one off piece of 
work to inform 
future work to 
support young 
people

Opportunities for 
Young People

Lifeskills course 
for young 
people

Berneslai 
Homes & BMBC 
Integrated 
Youth Support

£2,000
(there will 
be an 
underspend 
on this 
project)

Courses ran 
during 
summer 
holidays 2016

Not applicable – 
low attendance 
during pilot 
phase means will 
not run again in 
current form but 
may be adapted 
for summer 2017

Cross cutting across 
all themes

Health & 
Wellbeing Asset 
Mapping 
Conference

In house by 
South Area 
Team

£1,000 Held on 14th 
June 2016

3 follow up 
groups set up:
Universal Advice
Love Your Street
Better 
Community 
Networks

Page 41



PART A -  OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

The information which follows is a summary of the information provided to the South Area Council 
Manager at quarterly contract management review meetings. This includes both quantitative figures 
appended in the tables below and more qualitative information which is outlined in the short 
narrative report included for each project. There are occasions  when the quarterly review dates do 
not mesh with Area Council reporting dates, which means that the ‘achieved to date’ figures may 
not have changed from the previous report, as the new quarterly data is not yet due at time of 
writing.

Outcome Indicators                                                                                 Achieved to date                                                                                     Previous
Number of clients seen & in receipt of information & advice                    2172           (1900) 
£ of benefits gained as a result of the advice received                      £1,687,243.71                     (£1,475,704.70)
£ of unmanageable debt handled through financial settlements   £1,727,296.10 (£1,449,790.10)
Number of cases where homelessness was averted                                       42                 (39)
Number of clients referred to other specialist help                                       821           (694)
Number  referred to Credit Union or other money management help     280                (257)
Number of community groups visited to promote advice services            131                (120)
Number of vulnerable clients unable to self-help seen                                 243     New target

Outcome Indicators                                                                                         Achieved to date   Previous
Number of small environmental projects completed                                          828      (752)
Number of large environmental projects completed                                             69      (66)
Number of litter picks completed                                                                           1932           (1873)
Number of fly tipping incidents dealt with                                                             111      (110)
Number of Xmas projects completed                                                                         13      (13)
Number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued – littering                                            1873      (1715)
Number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued – dog fouling                                        125           (120)
Number of Parking PCNs issued                                                                                491       (462)
Number of targeted dog fouling & littering operations completed                  296       (260)

Improving our Local Environment

Access to Local Information & Advice

Page 42



Outcome Indicators                                                                                       Achieved to date                           Previous
Number of adult volunteers engaged  (53 new)                                                    338                                                                           (248)
Number of young people engaged in volunteering (33 new)                             115            (6)
Number of new community groups established                                                        8            (8)
Number of community groups supported (including schools)                           141        (131)
Number of jobs created locally                                                                                    14          (14)
Number of apprenticeship opportunities created locally                                      16          (16)
Number of local businesses encouraged to maintain own environment         160        (157)
Number of young people referred to restorative justice provision                     30          (19)
Income received from enforcement activity to Area Council in £                £81,698.75* (£74,733.75)
% of local spend achieved by projects                                                                        90%           90%
*Figure from start of contract to 31st December 2016

Outcome Indicators                                                                                             Achieved to date                                                   Previous
Number of local businesses approached to complete survey                   238  (completed)               238
Number of local businesses completing survey                                              88 (completed)                      88
Number of quotations sourced  for local business courses                          56 (completed)       56
Number of business courses commissioned                                                    16 (completed)       16
Students hours commissioned on business courses                                  1493 (completed)     1493
Number of students attending business courses to date                              45 (completed)       38
Number of student hours completed to date                                           243.5 (completed)    243.5
Number of student places booked onto future courses                                 84 (completed)       84 

Business courses are now completed, so figures will not change.

Changing the relationship between the Council and & 
the community

Improving the Local Economy

Page 43



Internship programme has now completed for 2016, so figures will not change

Outcome Indicators                                                                                                               Achieved to da
Achieved to 

date
Number of Summer Internship places filled 2015
Number of Summer Internship places filled 2016

41(completed)
25(completed)

Number of students completing Summer Internship 2015
Number of students completing Summer Internship 2016

37(completed)
20(completed)

Number of 5 Year Plans tailored to student needs developed 2015
Number of 5 Year Plans tailored to student needs developed 2016

33(completed)
25 (completed)

% of students reporting an increase in motivation about the future 2015  
% of students reporting an increase in motivation about the future 2016                                             

80%(completed)
End Oct 2016

% of students reporting increased confidence about future plans 2015
% of students reporting increased confidence about future plans 2016

88%(completed)
74%(completed)

% of students reporting increased knowledge about opportunities 2015
% of students reporting increased knowledge about opportunities 2016

72%(completed)
85%(completed)

% of students reporting increased awareness of own skills 2015
% of students reporting improved decision making skills 2016

72%(completed)
57%(completed)

Opportunities for Young People

Page 44



PART B -  SUMMARY PERFORMANCE  MANAGEMENT 

REPORT FOR EACH SERVICE

Comprehensive Quarter 10 (Sept - Dec 2016) monitoring reports were completed by 
Barnsley Citizens’ Advice Bureau and BMBC Welfare Rights and a Quarter 10 contract review 
meeting was held on Friday 9th December 16.

As a result of discussions at the South Area Council meeting on the 28th October 2016 the 
Acting South Area Council Manager met with CAB and  BMBC Welfare Rights to look at the 
request and options for advice services in Middlecliffe. A monthly session was offered to 
Middlecliffe as part of the existing contract, at no extra cost to the Area Council. This 
proposal is currently being considered by the Darfield members. 

The teatime / twighlight sessions continue to be extremely busy, reflecting the fact that the 
majority of those seen are in work and require help with in-work benefits or other issues.

The continued effects of national welfare reform continue to be felt – particularly in terms 
of the number of appeals/mandatory reconsiderations [where the client is appealing a 
decision made by the  DWP] which have virtually doubled in the last quarter, and also in the 
high numbers still being referred to Food Banks or Homeless provision. 

For the first time, both Advice Workers have been asked to record the proportion of client 
they would class as vulnerable and unable to help sort out the problems they are presenting 
with unaided. For both Advice Workers, this is averaging around 50%; showing the 
importance of retaining face-to-face services for those who most need it. 

RAG
Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting.

Milestones achieved

Outcome indicator targets met N/A

Social value targets met

Satisfactory spend and financial information

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract

Local 
Economy

Access to 
Local 

Advice

Changing 
Relationship

One Stop Shop Advice sessions – CAB & Welfare Rights

Page 45



Pressure on the Welfare Rights Adviser has increased massively over the last quarter due to 
the closure of DIAL’s face to face service, resulting in a large upsurge in clients coming 
forward for help with disability forms and related appeals/reconsiderations.

The Citizens Advice Worker has seen both debt and legal enquiries increase again this 
quarter, along with larger numbers of clients with mental or physical health problems. The 
amount of debt managed through financial settlements is the highest to date this quarter at 
over £277,000. 

This project has been extended to 30th June 2017 using a waiver to standing orders, to 
enable the full impact of the local Welfare Review and the associated restructuring of 
Citizen’s Advice and Welfare Rights Advice to be completed before the contract is 
recommissioned. 

The final and amended tender specification for the new contract agreed by the South Area 
Council (July 2017 – June 2019) will be presented for approval at the meeting of the South 
Area Council on 24th February 2017, after which it will go out to tender immediately. This 
will allow plenty of time for the procurement process to be completed before the new 
contract begins in July 2017. The new tender reflects the need to retain a face-to-face 
service outlined above, combined with a desire for the provider to develop alternative 
methods of support for less vulnerable clients. 

Case studies can be found at Appendices 1,2,3 and 4 of this report.

 

RAG

Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting.

Milestones achieved

Outcome indicator targets met

Social value targets met

Satisfactory spend and financial information

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract

Children & 
Young 
People

Improving 
Environment

Changing 
Relationship

Tidy Team – Forge Community Partnership/Anvil CIC

Qureportrereo

Local 
Economy

Page 46



The Tidy Team 2 project has been recommissioned. The contract was awarded to Forge 
Community Partnership/Anvil CIC and started on 1st August 2016. The contract will run for 8 
months to March 2017 initially, but allows for a further + 1 year + 1 year based on 
satisfactory performance and the continued availability of Area Council funding. 

As part of this new contract, the team are increasingly working alongside volunteers to 
deliver a range of environmental activities, clean-ups and litter picks. This can been seen in 
the increase in volunteers recruited and worked with – with 86 new volunteers this quarter 
alone (53 adults and 33 young people) and work done alongside 113 existing volunteers (37 
adults and 76 young people). 

Increasing demands on the team, particularly at weekends and in the evening are now 
seeing the team splitting into two, to enable a greater number of jobs to be tackled 
simultaneously. This has been made possible by increasingly the number of drivers and a 
rejigging of the working rota to include more weekend shifts. 

The Quarter 2 contract review meeting is due to be held on 13th February 2017, but the 
monitoring data has already been received and included in this report. The contract remains 
on amber because a small number of the targets have not been met, including numbers of 
litter picks, clean-ups, large & other environmental projects completed and businesses 
worked with. However, this is heavily offset by over-achievement on a number of other 
targets, including numbers of new volunteers recruited. This will need to be discussed at the 
forthcoming contract review, as it may be that these new targets require adjustment. 

Two adult apprentices were recruited in October 2016. One is enrolled on the NVQ2 in 
Horticulture at Barnsley College whilst the other needs additional basic skills support which 
is currently being sorted out with the College. Both have settled in well to the team and are 
enjoying the work. Forge are keen to recruit a further 2 younger Apprentices, but have been 
unable to find anyone suitable to date, despite the advert having been widely circulated a 
number of times since September last year. They are currently working with the Targeted 
Information and Advice Team in Barnsley Council to try to identify 2017 school leavers at 
risk of becoming NEET who could benefit from the opportunity. 

Case studies from the Tidy Team can be found at Appendices 5 & 6 of this report. 

Page 47



Kingdom were successful in gaining a new contract management and review process started 
1st April 2016 .  

Since the start of the original contract  1990 FPN’s (1873 of these have been for litter and 
125 for dog fouling) and 491 PCN’s for parking have been issued in the area.  Officers 
continue to concentrate their patrols around intelligence led information from the tasking 
process and also from referrals from elected members and complaints on the street and 
from the community at large. To date all offenders have either paid prior to attending court, 
pleaded guilty prior to court or have been found guilty at court. There continues to be a 
100% success rate at court. 

One of the issues with court proceedings has been the overly long wait to have the case 
heard in court (current offenders will not have their cases heard until November 2017) 
which delays the generation of income from fines. However, it is hoped that the 
introduction of a new and simpler Single Justice System from January 2017 onwards will 
help to reduce this significantly. 

As illustrated in the table above, there is overall satisfaction that the service is performing 
well and is continuing to make good progress in line with the contract. There has been a 
large rise in the amount of good quality intelligence being received from the public, 
particularly around dog fouling and this is reflected in the increased number of targeted 
operations this quarter – 36 in total. 

Eleven young people have taken place in restorative litter picks this quarter in lieu of a fine 
for littering, and a further 10 are awaiting a litter pick, which will take place in February. 

Case studies from this contract can be found at Appendices 7 & 8 of this report. 

RAG
Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting.

Milestones achieved

Outcome indicator targets met

Social value targets met

Satisfactory spend and financial information

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract

Improving 
Environment

Local 
Economy

Changing 
Relationship

Environmental Enforcement – Kingdom Security

Page 48



This contract has now been completed. As previously reported, takeup of these courses was 
around 17%, despite extensive survey work to identify the content and format of courses 
required by local businesses. For this reason, the South Area Council has decided not to fund 
similar provision in the future.

Summer Internship Programme -C&K Careers

RAG
Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting. N/A

Milestones achieved

Outcome indicator targets met

Social value targets met N/A

Satisfactory spend and financial information

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract

RAG

Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting (2015 and 2016 contracts)

Milestones achieved (2015 and 2016 contracts)

                                                               
Outcome indicator targets met

                                                                    

Social value targets met (2015 and 2016 contracts)

Satisfactory spend and financial information (2015 and 
2016 contracts)

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract (2015 
and 2016 contracts)

Local 
Economy

Changing 
Relationship

Local Business Survey & courses for local businesses

Local 
Economy

Children & 
Young 
People

Page 49



The 2015 and 2016 project continued to have an amber rating for ‘outcome indicators met’ 
because not all available places were filled across the two programmes. The South Area 
Council Manager has been satisfied that C+K Careers did all they reasonably could to get the 
schools to respond, and that any provider would have faced similar difficulties. As a result of 
the difficulties the number of places was reduced for 2016 to 45 against which 25 students 
were recruited for the South Area. 

A final report was provided in full at the meeting of the South Area Council on 2nd December 
2016. C+K Careers will now stay in touch with the 2016 cohort of students until they are 
settled into a first positive destination after leaving school, as the ‘stay in touch’ phase of 
the contract does not end until November 2017. 

Private Sector Housing Enforcement Officer – BMBC 
Community Safety

A one year pilot Service Level Agreement to provide a Private Sector Housing Enforcement 
Officer for the South Area was agreed with BMBC Community Safety by the South Area 
Council in April 2016. This was done in recognition of the excellent work done by similar 
posts operating in the Dearne and Central areas, and funded by their respective Area 
Councils. The post aims to work with both tenants and landlords in order to improve the 
standard of private sector housing and its immediate environment through support and 
where necessary, enforcement. 

RAG

Satisfactory quarterly monitoring report and contract 
management meeting N/A

Milestones achieved N/A

                                                               
Outcome indicator targets met

                                                                    

N/A

Social value targets met (2015 and 2016 contracts) N/A

Satisfactory spend and financial information (2015 and 
2016 contracts)

N/A

Overall satisfaction with delivery against contract (2015 
and 2016 contracts) N/A

Local 
Economy

Changing 
Relationship

Access to 
Local 

Advice

Page 50



A secondee was agreed and due to start with BMBC Community Safety in September 2016, 
but decided ultimately not to take the post. A new postholder, Sarah Harrison, was 
seconded to the post and started on October 31st 2016.

Sarah has already met with all members in the South Area and with BMBC Tasking and 
Enforcement Officers for the area in order to identify priority areas to focus upon, and has 
done a promotional campaign using Facebook and a short article in the South Area 
Community Magazine which goes to every household. 

The first quarterly contract meeting will be held in February 2017; hence the N/A in the 
table above. 

Progress on other related work:
Follow up from Health Asset Mapping Conference:

3 groups established to take forward priorities identified:

 Universal access to advice – work group postponed until local Welfare Review 
completed

 Love Your Block – pilot Halloween event held in Broomhill in October 2016, which 
was very successful and well attended. This approach will now be expanded using a 
toolkit developed in conjunction with other Area Teams, which offers help and 
advice to those wanting to hold an event, and the loan of an equipment kit.

 Better Community Networks – progress of group held up due to long term absence 
of South Area Council Manager. This will now be recovened.

Finance update:

Members will be aware that the proposed reduction in Area Council budgets of £40,000 for 
2017/18 has been removed, meaning that the South Area Council should get its full 
£400,000 allocation for 2017/18 as planned.

This means that including all income received from the Kingdom contract to date, the South 
Area Council now has £43,723 of funding which is currently unallocated. Future income 
received from Kingdom will be additional to this, but cannot be guaranteed. 

Kate Faulkes
South Area Council Manager 
19/02/17

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Citizens Advice 
Case Study 1 Q2 – Year 3

The clients were an elderly couple who visited Citizens Advice at the drop-in 
at Hoyland library. 

They had been trying to get some scaffolding removed from their property 
after having some work carried out by a company called Energysave Central 
Ltd who visited them at their home several months ago asking if they wanted 
any damp proofing work done.

The couple agreed to the work being carried out as they felt it needing doing 
anyway – however, the scaffolding was erected by a local subcontractor. 

The job was done on the 15 August and finished on the same day – the 
clients had no issues with the damp proofing work but had been trying to no 
avail, to get Energysave Central to remove the scaffolding ever since.  

The clients tried speaking to their salesman and customer services who kept 
promising the scaffolding would be taken down, but by November they felt 
they were getting nowhere. 

The scaffolding is at the rear of the house covering the back door and partially 
blocks the way into the client’s house. Their granddaughter had already 
banged her head against one of the poles and the clients were worried that 
with the dark nights it would be harder to see the scaffolding. 

The outreach adviser checked if the trader was a member of any trade 
organisation – they weren’t. However, as Energysave Central are a limited 
company the adviser looked them up on Companies House and obtained 
details of their head office and company director. 

Citizens Advice offered to act on the clients’ behalf and with their consent 
wrote to the director of Energysave Central Ltd requesting they arrange 
removal of the scaffolding as soon as possible as it had been up for nearly 3 
months.

Two days later, the director from Energysave phoned Barnsley Citizens 
Advice and spoke to the outreach adviser apologising profusely for what they 
called an unacceptable error, the scaffolding would be taken down 
immediately.

The following day, the client phoned up to confirm the trader had called them 
and the scaffolding had been taken down – the clients said they were 
extremely grateful for Citizens Advice getting involved on their behalf as they 
felt their voice just wasn’t being heard.   

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Citizens Advice
Case Study 2 Q2 – Year 3

The client came to see Citizens Advice at Hoyland library for advice on what notice 
pay they were entitled to if their employer dismissed them.

The client had a stroke a year ago and has been unable to work ever since, 
however, they’d now like to return to work to carry out some lighter duties but 
assumed they’d just be dismissed instead. 

They’d received a letter from their employer, a large company, wanting to meet the 
client to discuss their absence record, health and medical report carried out by the 
company. They also mentioned that the client may be dismissed. 

The client has worked for the company for over 30 years but if dismissed would only 
get notice pay amounting to a maximum of 12 weeks worth of their normal weekly 
pay. 

After exploring the client’s health situation in detail and researching into their 
employment rights we advised they couldn’t just be dismissed without the employer 
going through the correct processes as laid out in guidance by the advisory, 
conciliation and arbitration service, Acas. If the employer didn’t follow such a process 
it could be unfair dismissal.

The client was completely unaware of this so was advised on what to expect at the 
meeting with the employer and that they could take a union representative with them. 
We also advised on what an Employment Tribunal would expect from the employer 
when dealing with a long-term absence due to ill health and what role Acas would 
play between the client and the employer.  

The client was also advised that their employer may be discriminating against them 
due to their health after having had a stroke – if considered disabled the client is 
protected by the Equality Act 2010 and may be able to take action against their 
employer if they don’t make reasonable adjustments for them at work. 

As a result of the advice given the client has trade union representation at the 
meeting with the employer and they feel much more empowered and knowledgeable 
about their employment rights now.   

This is an ongoing, current case where the adviser from Citizens Advice is providing 
support and advice to the client to ensure they don’t suffer any wrongdoing or 
discrimination at work.  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Case Study 1

Client was recently bereaved & thus so left without any money due to her late husband 
being in receipt of all the benefits they had coming in. They live in a council property.

The client approached the one stop shop with her daughter for advice on what benefits 
she could now claim in her own right & how to go about it & also what to do about rent 
etc.

I first of all carried out a benefit check & as the clients late husband was suffering from 
cancer he received maximum DLA entitlement & therefore the client received carers 
allowance for looking after him.

The client was not aware but I informed her that her carers allowance along with a new 
claim to Income support & housing/council tax support would continue for a further 8 
weeks from the date of her husbands death therefore giving her a little breathing space 
until she can sort out her personal affairs & her future means of income. I advised her to 
make a new claim for both income support & Housing benefits right away & to ring the 
DWP’s bereavement service to inform them of his passing, this would then be fed down 
to all depts. within the DWP notifying to suspend all his claims etc.

I advised her to make a claim for bereavement allowances as she would qualify for the 
maximum amount of £115 pw & the £2k lump sum payment due to her age.

I also advised to claim for the social funds funeral grant due to them not having any 
substantial savings or a pre-planned funeral arrangement.

I contacted on her behalf Berneslai homes & council tax dept. to advise them of the 
situation & that new claims would be submitted immediately & to ask them to suspend 
any arrears letters until things had fell into place. 
I completed online a new claim for housing/council tax benefits with the client during the 
interview & gave no’s. for income support, carers allowance & the bereavement service. 

I calculated the clients new income after the 8 week carers run on had expired including 
the bereavement allowance with housing & council tax benefits & provided her with a 
copy of this.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

Case Study 2

Client is elderly who has recently had to take the decision to place her husband who has 
dementia in a nursing care home due to his significant decline in mental & physical functions.

She informed me that they were in receipt of joint pension credit top up of their pensions of 
about £30 per week. They own their own home & received council tax benefit & they do not 
have any savings over £10k so her husband is receiving full care funding.

She is concerned that when she notified the pension credit dept. back in June ’16 by phone  
that she needed to claim in her own right that the amount of pension credit she keeps getting 
every week is the same & despite numerous calls to them to which they keep telling her that 
it will be dealt with but she is afraid that she may be being overpaid with all the time going 
past & just feels as though she is being fobbed off.

I telephoned the Pension credit dept I explained the circumstances & requested a change of 
circumstances form be done with the advisor over the phone to which occurred & was told 
client would be notified in due course. 

I also calculated clients new pension credit award based on her income & she would be 
entitled to more solely than when it was joint as she only has her own small state pension.

This seemed to reassure the client as she was thinking she would get less & that she was 
being overpaid from June ’16. 

A couple of weeks later the client came back to the drop in to say she had still not heard 
anything & that she was still being paid the same amount! I made the decision to print off a 
pension credit change of circumstance form which we completed there & then to which I 
posted off from our HQ.

The client 2 weeks later telephoned me to say that everything had been sorted & that she was 
also due a lump sum payment from them which was the backdated higher amount she was 
entitled to from June ’16.

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5a

Anvil CIC Case Study 1

Title   WEST MEADOWS SCHOOL–LITTER PICK/CHRISTMAS EVENT

Date   1 DECEMBER 2016

Ward Area  HOYLAND MILTON

Who requested? ONGOING LIAISON WITH SCHOOL

Summary:

This event was an ideal opportunity to involve the children of West Meadows School 
in the decoration of the Hoyland Christmas Tree.  The tree was erected, the children 
did a litter pick and decorated the tree and sand Christmas Carols.

Key Learning Points:

Children of this age have very short attention spans and need to see an end result 
very quickly. Whilst litter picking they were told of the background of what happens to 
litter and the importance of recycling.  Because of the variance in the work they were 
occupied and happy for longer lengths of time.

Background:

This event was the final event in the year with this school following a number of 
projects in differing seasons and a successful year of work with the children.  
Previous work had included wild walks, education of bugs, litter and recycling.  

Who was Involved:

Staff:                          Tidy Team x 4
Existing Volunteers: 0
New Volunteers:       30
Hours Given:             60

Any unplanned outcomes (Good or Bad):

None.

Outcomes of Project:

Awareness of Tidy Team within the community was increased whilst providing a very 
educational and fun event for these children.

Page 61



Appendix 5a

What could have been done better:

The area around the Christmas Tree needed to be attended to following the event 
due to the amount of footfall around it.

Next Steps:

Future work with the school arranged for 14-15 February 2017 in Martha’s Garden.

Signed.

Page 62



CASE STUDY 1 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6a

Anvil CIC Case Study 2

Title   DUKE STREET AND WEST STREET MARKET CAR PARKS

Date   9 DECEMBER 2016

Ward Area  HOYLAND MILTON

Who requested? RESILIENTI (HOYLAND) LTD

Summary:

This project evolved over a number of dates.  Resilienti approached the tidy team to 
follow on  the work that they had started around the Duke and West Street Car Park 
areas.  

Key Learning Points:

Background:

The work involved pruning, cutting of grass, weeding and removal of weed 
vegetation, landscaping and a reseeding of the soil, clear up and litter pick in all the 
areas of the car parks..

Who was Involved:

Staff:                          Tidy Team x 4
Existing Volunteers: 0
New Volunteers:       0
Hours Given:             0
Greenwaste               10 Jumbo bags from start of project
Litter                          16 Jumbo and 36 bags

Any unplanned outcomes (Good or Bad):

A volunteering opportunity has arisen as a result of networking done whilst this job 
was underway.

Outcomes of Project:

Awareness of Tidy Team within the community was increased whilst providing a very 

Page 65



Appendix 6a

much needed clear up in this area and continued working relationship with Resilienti.

What could have been done better:

Next Steps:

Ongoing work to keep this area to the standard achieved.  Further work needed in 
the recruitment of volunteers to assist.

Signed.

Page 66



 
 

 

CASE STUDY 2 

Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report of South Area Council 
Manager.

Recommissioning of South Area Council Advice Services contract

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the final draft tender specification for the recommissioning of the 
South Area Council Advice Services contract for consideration and approval by the 
South Area Council.

1.2 To seek volunteers from the South Area Council to sit on the Evaluation Panel as 
part of the recommissioning process. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 That members agree the revised tender specification for the Advice 
Services contract, including agreement upon any required amendments

2.2 That members approve the recommissioning of the Advice Services 
contract for two years from 1st July 2017 

2.3 That the South Area Council nominates a minimum of one representative to 
sit on the Evaluation Panel for the recommissioning of the Advice Service 
contract

3.      Background 
3.1 The South Area Council first commissioned advice services in June 2014, when 
Barnsley Citizens Advice Bureau and BMBC Welfare Rights Service were jointly 
approved to deliver the ‘One Stop Shop’ contract across the South Area.

3.2 This highly successful contract has now seen in excess of 2100 people and has 
brought back in excess of £1,687,000 in extra income to local people in the form of 
benefit gain. A Social Return on Investment analysis found that the project brought in 
over £28 of social value for every £1 invested by the Area Council.

3.2  The initial 2 year ‘One Stop Shop’ contract finished in June 2016. However, it 
was decided not to recommission the project at this stage because a major 
restructuring of mainstream advice provision was underway as part of a local  
Welfare Review and this needed to be completed in order for the implications (if any) 
on the ‘One Stop Shop’ contract to be clear. As a result, two waivers to Standing 
Orders were granted to cover the period July 2016 – June 2017, to allow the project 
to continue whilst the Welfare Review and its associated restructurings were 
completed. 

South Area Council Meeting:          

24th February 2017

Page 71

Sac.24.02.2017/8



3.3 At its meeting on 2nd December 2016, the South Area Council had already 
decided to recommission this service, and asked for a detailed and revised tender 
specification to be drawn up for its approval at its meeting on 24th February 2017. 
This specification is attached at Appendix A.

4. Revisions to the tender specification

4.1 The ‘One Stop Shop’ specification has now been renamed the ‘Advice Services’ 
project. This is because the original idea for a range of advice services to be housed 
under one roof outlined in the 2014 tender specification did not turn out to be 
possible because of practical limitations on confidential space across the four wards. 
The need to join services up for the client was achieved through highly effective 
referral and signposting to other organisations and help by the two advice workers on 
the project.  

4.2 The tender document makes reference to the need for the appointed provider/s to 
make strong links to the new Public Service Hubs which will be in place from 1st April 
2017. This will need further exploration with the provider/s after the contract has been 
awarded because the way in which the Hubs will operate is still under development.

4.3 The tender specification also makes reference to the possible development of a 
‘triage’ system whereby clients are screened on arrival and referred for a range of 
help (from intensive face-to-face support through to self help/partial self help or 
online/phone support) dependent on assessed need. This is done both to boost the 
client’s ability to help themselves, but also to manage high levels of demand. 

This approach has not been used to date as part of the ‘One Stop Shop’ contract but 
has been operating in town centre Welfare Rights services for some time. Rising 
demand on the South Area Council advice workers means that the introduction of 
this way of working may need to be considered on the new Advice Services contract, 
but it is not clear how this would work locally and this would need further exploration 
with the provider/s once the contract is awarded. 

4.4  For the first time, provider/s are being asked to deliver occasional briefing 
sessions for practitioners working in the area on important changes to the welfare 
system – for example, the rollout of Universal Credit. This reflects the government’s 
continuing reforms to the welfare system, which look likely to continue for the 
foreseeable future. 

4.5  Reflecting the need to continue Social Return on Investment analyses on all 
South Area Council contracts, the provider/s are being asked to collect some new 
statistical data which will make this more accurate – for example, the number of 
clients with mental or physical health problems and the number of clients who have 
been helped to avoid a tribunal. 

4.6 Because the session times and venues are now well established and known 
within the South Area, the tender specification stipulates that the provider/s must 
retain the same service schedule. The specification also asks the provider/s to 
present additional ideas to support clients – for example, the use of webchat or the 
development of Check & Send services, where the client completes documentation 
which is then checked by the advice worker before sending.  

Page 72



Appendix A: South Area Council Advice Services tender specification  
Appendix B: South Area Council Advice Services Business Case

Officer Contact: Kate Faulkes 
South Area Council Manager 

Tel: 01226 355866 / 07791 600836
Date: 14th February 2017

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

RETURN DATE: 20/03/2017 @ 12pm

PROJECT REF: South Area Council – 
Advice Services

DATE: 27/02/2017

Executive Director 
Barnsley MBC
Directorate
Westgate Plaza One
PO Box 609
Barnsley
S70 9FH

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN
BOROUGH COUNCIL

TENDER DOCUMENTATION 

Page 75



CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - PROJECT OVERVIEW AND SCOPE OF SERVICE

SECTION 2 - INSTRUCTIONS FOR TENDERING/TENDER EVALUATION AND 
TENDER QUALITY QUESTIONNAIRE

SECTION 3 - PRICING SCHEDULE, FORM OF TENDER AND APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Anti-Collusion Certificate

Appendix 2 – TUPE Confidentiality  Agreement 

Appendix 3 – Service Specifications

Appendix 4 – Performance Measures

SECTION 4 - FORM OF CONTRACT

Page 76



SECTION 1

PROJECT OVERVIEW AND SCOPE OF SERVICE

Page 77



SECTION 1

PROJECT OVERVIEW AND SCOPE OF SERVICE

1. INTRODUCTION

The South Area Council (comprising Darfield, Hoyland Milton, Rockingham and 
Wombwell wards) wants to recommission its highly successful and well used 
information and advice services, which have been delivered in a range of community 
venues across the South Area since June 2014. 

Based on strong evidence of continuing local need, the provider/s will need to 
continue to offer the full range of welfare rights and advice services for local people 
as outlined in detail in Section 6. The appointed provider/s must demonstrate high 
levels of skill and experience in delivering the following face to face information and 
advice services to a universal locally based client group:

 Helping local people to maximise their income through claiming of the full 
range of in- work, out of work and disability related benefits and pensions

 Supporting local people with a range of issues including unmanageable debt, 
housing and homelessness, employment, legal and relationship problems

 Supporting local people to cope with the challenges of continuing welfare 
reform and the impacts of austerity

 Full referral and signposting to a range of specialist and/or other local services 
where appropriate

 Active ongoing promotion of the services offered to the wider community 
through networking with community groups and partner organisations and 
through the use of social media, particularly where certain groups are not 
using the service offered

 Provision of regular information briefings for practitioners and community 
groups regarding major changes in policy or welfare delivery – for example, 
the move to introduce Universal Credit for all new claimants. 

For full details of the services required, please refer to point 6 within this section.

Working alongside the South Area Council Manager who will manage the contract, 
the provider/s will ensure that the services offered in the South Area fully align with 
and complement the borough-wide universal services offered by Barnsley Citizens 
Advice Bureau and the BMBC Welfare Rights Service and newly established Public 
Service Hubs.

In developing and delivering this service, the providers should ensure that they are 
contributing to the Council’s Corporate Priorities and outcome statements, as 
outlined in Section 1, Point 4 of this specification.

Page 78



The service delivered will be required to demonstrate high levels of social value 
through contributing to building the resilience and self- reliance of individuals to 
manage their own lives and the challenges they are faced with, as outlined in 
Section 5.

2. BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT

The initial need for locally based advice and information services was first identified 
by the South Area Council in 2013, when it became apparent from ward based data 
showed a huge increase in the demand for borough-wide welfare rights and citizen’s 
advice amongst people living in the South Area. Further investigation showed that 
this was due to a number of changing factors, including:  

 An increase in unemployment and under-employment across the Area leaving 
larger number of people reliant on particularly in-work benefits 

 The migration of clients from Incapacity Benefit to Employment Support 
Allowance and from Disability Living Allowance to Personal Independence 
Payments. 

 The introduction of the ‘Bedroom Tax’
 The move to housing payments made monthly direct to tenants
 The need for those on Housing Benefit (80% of who are in low paid work 

nationally) to contribute towards their housing and Council Tax costs
 A massive increase in those having their benefits sanctioned 

This has led to a number of issues, including:

 A growing number of housing related enquiries around the risk of 
homelessness.  

 A continued growth in clients seeking help with unmanageable levels of debt, 
 Increasing numbers of clients with poor money management skills combined 

with a lack of resources within support organisations to offer support early on 
to prevent people reaching crisis point

 The unknown impact of the introduction of Universal Credit and a move to all 
applications for in and out of work benefits (including pension related) to be 
completed online, as well as the continuing impact of direct housing payments 
to tenants. 

Evidence of issues within the South Area:

These national and borough-wide issues are heavily reflected in the statistics from 
the existing South Area Council contract delivered by Barnsley Citizen’s Advice 
Bureau and BMBC Welfare Rights Service, which found that in the 2 years from 
June 2014-16: 

 39 individuals required urgent help in order to keep their homes
 Local people presented with £1,449,000 of debt which  they could no longer 

manage and which required the negotiation of a formal financial settlement
 Local people were supported to £1,581,000 of largely in-work and health 

related benefits to which they did not know they were entitled

Page 79



 Over 200 people required help from either the Credit Union or money 
management support in order to budget more effectively

 Over 700 specialist referrals were required to help with the issues presented 
by local people, including solicitors, homeless organisations & housing 
providers, domestic violence support, drug and alcohol support and a range of 
benefit agencies

The combined impact of these issues requires the delivery of specialist services 
which:

 Provide universal access to good quality welfare rights and advice support 
delivered in appropriate community venues. 

The provider/s should be skilled and experienced in all areas of information and 
advice outlined in Sections 1 and 2 of this specification, but should be able to 
demonstrate particularly high levels of expertise in the following areas, which 
have continued to be the highest areas of demand throughout the initial contract 
period 2014-17:

 Support to claim in-work benefits and associated benefits for those in low paid 
and/or part time work, including support to claim as a result of changes in 
personal circumstances

 Support to claim disability benefits and to manage the challenges presented 
by the reassessment processes associated with ESA, PIP etc.

 Support to those presenting with unmanageable debt and the negotiation of 
formal financial settlements with a range of creditors

 Support people to feel that they have choice over the decisions they make, 
and provides access to support with money management training and/or 
Credit Union facilities where needed

 Provide signposting and referral to a wide range of local and boroughwide 
support services, ranging from specialist advice (for example, Macmillan 
Advisers, SISWO support or jobsearch help) to other support provision (for 
example, Food Banks, support from local groups) where required

 Help to identify gaps in provision and work actively with the South Area 
Council to look at ways to tackle this

 Provide information in a range of accessible formats, including online, face to 
face, printed information

 Offer a range of support from intensive face-to-face for the most vulnerable 
clients through to the encouragement of self-help or partial self-help for those 
able to help themselves

Page 80



3. STRATEGIC VISION AND VALUES

In its Corporate Plan for 2017 – 20, Barnsley Council has identified its overall vision 
as:

“Working together for a brighter future, a better Barnsley”

As an organisation, our values are:

We’re A Team:

 We work as “One Council” to do the best that we can for our customers
 We build partnerships and work with others to achieve the best for Barnsley
 We are understanding and supportive of others, respecting and valuing 

differences

We’re Honest:

 We are open and honest about what we are able to achieve, the decisions we 
make and how well we are doing

 We are true to our word, reliable and fair
 We are responsible and accountable for our actions 

We’ll Be Excellent:

 We are committed to quality and value for money
 We learn from our successes and mistakes
 We are flexible, adaptable and respond positively to change

We’re Proud:
 We are proud of the work we do and services we deliver
 We are proud to support our communities to make Barnsley a better place
 We are proud of our achievements

Page 81



4.0 COUNCIL PRIORITIES AND OUTCOME STATEMENTS

The advice services delivered should work to support the delivery of the BMBC 
Corporate Priorities outlined below. In addition, the services should contribute 
actively to the outcomes of the 2017/18 Stronger Communities Business Plan 
outlined at section 4.1.  

BMBC Corporate Priorities and outcome statements 
In developing and delivering this service, the provider should ensure that it is 
contributing to the Council’s Corporate priorities and outcome statements as 
outlined below.

Thriving and Vibrant Economy  Create more & better jobs and 
good business growth

 Increase skills to get more 
people working

 Develop a vibrant town centre
 Strengthen our visitor 

economy
 Create more & better housing

People Achieving Their Potential  Every child attends a good 
school and is successful in 
learning & work

 Reducing demand through 
improving access to early help

 Children & adults are safe 
from harm

 People are healthier, happier, 
independent & active

Strong & Resilient Communities  People volunteering & 
contributing towards stronger 
communities

 Protecting the borough for 
future generations

 Customers can contact us 
more easily and use more 
services online

Page 82



4.1 The service should actively contribute to the following Stronger Communities Service 
outcomes: 

Stronger Communities Service outcomes for 2017/18

Thriving and Vibrant Economy  Area Commissioning 
arrangements with strong 
social value principles

 Aim to ensure the funding 
remains in Barnsley

 Strengthening the volcom 
sector to be able to attract 
more external funding

 Commissioning initiatives 
specifically to support the 
economy

 Recognising the financial 
value of volunteering & the 
economic capital of 
volunteering

 Leading the Principal Towns 
programme of investment

People Achieving Their Potential  Enable community capacity 
building and a greater voice 
for citzens

 Volunteering as a route to 
achieving individual potential

 Parks and open spaces to 
provide a proven health 
benefit for individuals and 
communities

 Providing training and support 
for our volunteers

Strong & Resilient Communities  Work together as partners 
with communities to share 
leadership for building 
stronger, more able & more 
resilient communities

 Work together alongside 
residents & communities, 
recognising & building on their 
strengths & contributions, to 
inform as well as deliver our 
services

Page 83



 Play our part in seeking out & 
developing new relationships, 
and working together to 
strengthen & develop the 
sector

 Work in partnership to 
manage & maintain our green 
spaces and facilities

5. SPECIFIC AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE SERVICE

The South Area Council currently has four local priorities, against which it 
commissions a range of interventions and projects. These are:

 Access to locally available and accessible information, advice & guidance
 A thriving local economy
 Supporting opportunities for young people
 Improving the Local Environment

As part of its priorities around improving access to information and advice and a 
thriving local economy, the Area Council chose to tackle the issues around debt and 
lack of financial support identified in Section 1 Point 2.

As such, this contract seeks a provider/s to contribute to:  

a) the reduction of poverty in the South Area and 
b) the increase in mental and physical wellbeing in the South Area

by supporting people to:

 Maximise the in and out of work benefits they are entitled to
 Manage their debts more effectively Access other specialist help they may 

need to manage the issues they have
 Access help to find work and/or training
 Access help around more effective money management, to avoid falling 

back into a spiral of repeated debt 
 Find out more about the help available to them locally and borough-wide
 Learn how to help themselves and become more resilient in the future

Ensure that people in the South Area are getting the maximum usage from help 
and support available locally and borough-wide by:

 Referral and signposting to encourage people to take up all available help
 Working with local organisations and community groups (including the 3 

South Neighbourhood Networks and their Ward Alliances) to ensure that 
the contracted information and advice services and its partner support 
organisations are appropriately and strongly promoted across the Area

Page 84



Social Value objectives:

Under this contract the provider/s will be required to actively contribute to the 
achievement of specific social value objectives. These include:

 Recruitment and deployment of volunteers where appropriate
 Promotion of employment, education & training opportunities within the 

Area
 Use of local VCS organisations and groups 
 Contribution to the development of strong community networks
 The promotion of community and individual self help and the growth of 

resilience
 Local spend wherever possible

6. THE SERVICE/ACTIVITIES TO BE DELIVERED

The contracted service will use a range of local venues to provide the full range 
of advice and information outlined in this specification to local people across the 
South Area, by offering: 

 The full range of Welfare Rights issues, including encouraging the full 
maximising of in and out of work benefit claims

 Information and advice around the impact of Welfare Reforms, including 
support and/or representation at appeals and tribunals

 Debt counselling and the agreement of formal financial settlements with 
creditors

 Issues related to health, employment, education, travel etc.

 Housing related issues, including support to avoid homelessness

 Financial, consumer/utilities and legal issues

 Signposting and referral to other specialist provision, including specialist 
support, training, employability/job-search, Credit Union & money 
management

This will require the employment of staff to continue to provide a fully qualified and 
experienced outreach team to be deployed across the South Area, offering a series 
of regular ‘slots’ of face-to-face advice delivered in easily accessible buildings across 
each ward. Use of these buildings has already been negotiated and will not need to 
be done by the provider/s,

The provider must deliver at least one day per week face-to-face service to each 
ward within the Area, although this may be altered during the lifetime of the contract 
in response to evidenced change in local need. 

Page 85



This delivery should comprise at least one half day per week per ward of Welfare 
Rights advice and at least one half day per week per ward of Advice work. This 
must include at least one weekly twilight/evening session to enable access to 
those in full time work, although this can be delivered in one of the wards only. 

The service should continue to be offered in the same venues and at the same times 
as delivered by the existing contract (see Appendix  for the existing service 
schedule) and provider/s will need to clearly state reasons for any alterations, since 
these sessions are already well known and widely promoted throughout the South 
Area.

In addition to the required services listed above, the South Area Council would 
welcome the introduction of additional formats for work with clients (for example, 
webchat, use of social media, using volunteers, check and send methodologies) 
although this should not be offered as a replacement for the face-to-face service 
outlined above.  

All staff used for the delivery of this contract should have a minimum of three years’ 
paid experience in either welfare rights or advice related work which covers the 
range of issues listed above. They must also be provided with regular specialist 
supervision, which could be provided either by the employing organisation or ‘bought 
in’ by a suitable third party organisation where this is not possible. 

Target Groups

Residents of all ages who live within the Darfield, Hoyland Milton, Rockingham and 
Wombwell wards who require the advice and support offered by this contract. 

However, the evidence base suggests that although the service offered will be 
universal, the following target groups are disproportionately more likely to require the 
services offered:

 People in low paid and/or part time work who are reliant on in-work benefits
 People with mental and physical health problems and/or disabilities
 Older people who are dependent on a state pension but who often do not 

claim additional related benefits to which they are entitled
 People whose vulnerability would make it unlikely that they could resolve the 

issues they face without help

Equality Impacts

The successful Provider will be required to ensure that the service is free from bias 
and acknowledges and respects gender, sexual orientation, age, race, religion, 
culture, lifestyle and values.  If any needs are required as per the equalities act, such 
as language or disability, these needs will be provided for during the term of the 
contract.

Page 86



7. PERFORMANCE MEASURES/OUTPUTS

(Output) Annual Target if set
Number of unique individuals from South Area seen 950
Number of individual clients seen by ward Minimum of 15% of clients 

seen from each of the 4 
wards

Number of appeals and mandatory reconsiderations 
supported 25

Overall benefit gain in £
 

£520,000

Number of financial/debt settlements negotiated 100
Amount of debt managed in £ £750,000
Numbers referred to Credit Union and/or money 
management support 

150

Numbers referred to other specialist provision & 
organisations used

400

Number of clients where homelessness averted 25
Number of clients with declared mental health 
issues N/A
Number of clients with declared physical health 
issues N/A
Number of clients supported to avoid employment 
or other tribunal

N/A

Number of clients helped to claim:
- In work benefits
- Disability or health related benefits
- Out of work benefits
- Other

N/A

Number of clients enabled to self- help in order to 
reduce repeat demand N/A
Number of clients enabled to partially self-help [for 
example, through a Check & Send service or similar 
approaches]

N/A

Number of community  networking plans produced 
& implemented

1 joint plan to be produced 
per quarter

Number of organisations and groups networked with 
for referral, signposting or takeup purposes

50

Client satisfaction survey undertaken 10% random sample of all 
clients seen

Local spend achieved 90%
(Activity/Action) (By When)

Approval of tender specification  by South Area 
Council

24/02/17

Tender specification advertised on Yortender 27/02/17
Contract awarded 27/04/17
Contract commences 01/07/17
Quarter 1 report Jul – Sept 17 submitted 09/10/17
Quarter 2 report Oct – Dec 17 submitted 09/01/18
Quarter 3 report Jan – Mar 18 submitted 09/04/18

Page 87



Quarter 4 report April – June 18 submitted 09/07/18
Quarter 5 report Jul – Sept 18 submitted 09/10/18
Quarter 6 report Oct – Dec 18 submitted 09/01/19
Quarter 7 report Jan – Mar 19 submitted 09/04/19
Quarter 8 report April – June 19 submitted 09/07/19
End of Project Report submitted 09/08/19

8. PROCUREMENT PROGRAMME

The intended timetable is:

Tender approved by South Area Council 24th February 2017
Tender advertised 27th February 2017
Deadline for clarification questions 13th March 2017
Tender applications to be returned 20th March 2017
Evaluation 21st – 24th March 2017
Standstill period 6th April 2017
Contract awarded 7th April 2017
Service contracts begin 1st July 2017

12. CONTRACT VALUE AND CONTRACT DURATION

The estimated cost of this service is £150,000 over a 2 year period (£75,000 per 
annum) subject to the provider achieving the outputs and monitoring requirements 
outlined in Section 7.

This figure to be broken down:

 £74,000 per annum (£148,000 over 2 years) for the employment of staff to 
provide service delivery exclusively to this contract. The staff team employed 
on this contract must be fully qualified and able to demonstrate skills in advice 
work and in generic welfare rights advice, as outlined in Section 5.. 

 A figure of £2,000 over 2 years (£1,000 per annum) to cover promotional and 
venue costs to support the delivery of advice services.

 Costs for venues will not be provided because the appointed provider/s would 
be required to use the following community venues which are already in use 
by the existing local advice service provision and are well known to the local 
community:

Wombwell Library
Darfield Children’s Centre
Hoyland Centre

13. CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A copy of the proposed Form of Contract for the service is included at Section 4. 
Please note that each service will be contracted on an individual basis but the Terms 
and Conditions will be the same.

Page 88



14. CONTRACT MONITORING AND RECORDING REQUIREMENTS

The successful provider/s will be expected to demonstrate the effectiveness of 
the service in terms of delivering the agreed outcomes, outcome measures 
and outputs outlined in Point 7 of this section.  There is a key requirement of 
the provider/s to:

 Collect, collate and report on a range of agreed indicators on a quarterly basis 
(see milestones) as part of a quarterly report. This should also include the 
submission of 2 case studies (group, individual or illustrating good 
practice/innovative work).

 Establish compatible systems to ensure effective management and 
performance management of the service. Information systems must comply 
with the requirements of the Data Protection Act. 

 Attend quarterly meetings with the Contract manager to discuss the quarterly 
report and provide additional information or clarification if required.

 An end of year report to be submitted at the end of the first year (see 
milestones in Section 1, Point 7)

 An end of Project report and lessons learned to be submitted within 2 months 
of the project’s completion (see milestones in Section 1, Point 7)

 If the service is delivered by multiple providers working together, it is expected 
that the providers will work together to provide all monitoring information 
jointly. 

15. QUALITY STANDARDS

 The provider of this service has a legal obligation to adhere to all equality 
legislation. The provider must produce their policy relating to race, gender, 
disability, religion or belief, sexual orientation and age. This policy should 
include the reporting mechanism for any adverse events which would 
constitute a deviation. Any and all adverse events should be reported to the 
Area Service Manager.

 Robust Policies and procedures are to be put in place to ensure Safeguarding 
of all adults, data protection and Information Governance.

The provider will ensure that:

 All staff are equipped with appropriate training, staff development and 
supervision

 All staff employed or engaged by the Provider are informed and are aware 
of the standard of performance that they are required to provide and are 
able to meet that standard.

 All staff employed or engaged by the Provider must be registered with the 
appropriate professional body where applicable

 The adherence of the Provider’s staff to such standards of performance is 
routinely monitored and that remedial action is promptly taken where such 
standards are not met.

Page 89



 All staff employed or engaged by the Provider are subject to a DBS 
clearance, where required, and an acceptable outcome determined.

 For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this specification is intended to 
prevent the Provider from setting higher quality standards than those laid 
down in the Contract.

Additionally:

 The provider will have a robust system for monitoring complaints and 
suggestions; feedback from service users will inform service delivery

 The provider will submit reports summarising any complaints, investigations 
and remedial actions

SEE ALSO CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Page 90



SECTION 2

INSTRUCTIONS FOR TENDERING/TENDER EVALUATION AND 
TENDER QUALITY QUESTIONNAIRE

1.1 Tenderers should upload their completed tender onto the YORtender website 
no later than:

12pm ON 20/03/2017

1.2 The Tender Documents available on the YORtender system comprise the 
following:

Section 1 – Project Overview and Scope of Service
Section 2 – Instructions for Tendering/Tender Evaluation/Tender Questionnaire
Section 3 – Pricing Schedule, Form of Tender and Appendices
Section 4 – Form of Contract
Section 5 – TUPE information

2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR TENDERING

2.1 The text of the Tender Document shall not be altered by the Tenderer.

2.2 Tenders must not be qualified, conditional, accompanied by statements, which 
could be construed as rendering them equivocal and/or placed on a different 
footing to other Tenders.

2.3 Only the person named in the covering letter to this Tender has the authority 
to issue any information or give any verbal or written explanation as to the 
meaning of any of the Tender Documents.

2.4 Questions or requests for clarification from Tenderers to the Council will be 
treated confidentially, unless the questions asked and the answers given need 
to be circulated to all Tenderers in fairness and equity.

2.5 The Council may extend the Tendering period if this is deemed necessary.

2.6 Any request for clarification or further information must come from the 
Tenderer only.

2.7 Submission of Tender

The Tenderer shall complete the following sheets, which must be returned 
with the Tender.  Failure to comply may lead to the Council rejecting your 
tender:

 Tender Questionnaire – Fully Completed
 Pricing Schedule
 Form of Tender
 Appendix 1 – Providers Insurance

Page 91



Any additional documentation, which has not been specifically requested, will 
not be considered.

2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR TENDERING 

2.8 Submission of your Tender to the Council must only be made electronically 
through the YORtender System at http://www.yortender.co.uk/.  Any technical 
queries about the YORtender system itself should be directed to 
yorkshiresupport@due-north.com, or by calling 0844 5434580.

2.9 A Supplier Guide is available on request to assist Tenderers to upload and 
download documents.  If you would like further guidance or support using 
YORtender, please contact the Council’s Procurement Helpdesk on 01226 
772782.

2.10 Tenderers should upload their completed tender onto the YORtender website, 
no later than the date notified on the front cover of the Tender Document and 
on Page 2/1 or an amended return date as notified by the Council.

2.11 When the deadline (20/03/2017 at 12pm) for tenders has passed, you will not 
be allowed to return your tender using YORtender or any other means.  The 
YORtender portal will close automatically at the allocated deadline time, part 
uploaded documents will not be accepted.  The Council will not accept any 
claims from a Tenderer on the basis that there was insufficient time to upload 
the documents.

2.12 Signatures are not required when making an electronic submission.  Typed 
entries are acceptable.

TUPE

2.13 The Council considers that in the event of this contract being awarded other 
than to the present service providers then the terms of the European Acquired 
Rights Directive (Number 2001/23) and/or the Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) may apply.

In the event that TUPE does apply, upon which the tenderers must reach their 
own view, tenderers should take into account the following requirements 
which would then arise:

2.14   You are advised to seek independent professional advice as to the 
application and the effects of the Directive and/or the Regulations on your 
organisation should you be in the position of being a successful tenderer.

 The need to consult with recognised trade unions or other professional 
associations.

 the need to maintain existing rates of pay and conditions of employment of 
employees; and

Page 92

http://www.yortender.co.uk/
mailto:yorkshiresupport@due-north.com


 the need for a successful tenderer to accept liability in respect of claims for 
redundancy payments, unfair dismissal and all other claims related to 
previous employees.

3. TENDER EVALUATION

3.1 The Council will evaluate Tenders on a Price/Quality basis.  A Price: Quality 
ratio of 30/70 applies, in favour of quality.  The Tender shall be awarded to the 
highest scoring accepted Tenderer.  However, the Council is not bound to 
accept the highest scoring or any tender.

3.2 Price Evaluation

If the Council suspects that there has been an error in pricing, the Council 
reserves the right to seek such clarification as it considers necessary from the 
Tenderer.

It is the Tenderer’s responsibility to ensure that the Tender is arithmetically 
correct, prior to submission.  The Tenderer will be informed of any arithmetical 
errors and be given an opportunity of confirming their offer or amending it to 
correct genuine errors.

The tender priced submissions will be separately evaluated as part of the 
tender evaluation.  

Unacceptably low or high tenders may be discarded.  A tender will be 
assumed to be unacceptably (abnormally) low if, in comparison with the 
Client’s preliminary estimate and of all tenders submitted, it seems to be 
abnormally low by not providing a margin for a normal level of profit, and the 
Tenderer cannot explain the price/price breakdown on the basis of the 
delivery, or the technical solution proposed.

3.4 TENDER EVALUATION 

The tender price submission will be independently evaluated by the evaluation 
team; the lowest acceptable price will be awarded 10 points. All submissions 
will use the formula lowest lot price / individual lot price * 10 which will score 
out of 10. The price will then be proportioned to 100% of the section for 
pricing then multiplied by 0.3 to proportion to 30% of the overall marks.

3.5 Tender Quality Evaluation

The tender quality evaluation comprises a three stage process:

 Stage One – Supplier Questionnaire 

 Stage Two – Technical Capacity (Qualitative Questions)

 Stage Three – Pricing Schedule

Page 93



3.6 Overall Price/Quality Evaluation Score

The tender price submission will be independently evaluated by the evaluation 
team; the lowest acceptable price will be awarded 10 points. All submissions 
will use the formula lowest lot price / individual lot price * 10 which will score 
out of 10. 

The ‘Price Score’ and the ‘Quality Score’ will then be totalled to arrive at the 
‘Total Score’.  The ‘Total Scores’ will then determine the most economically 
advantageous tender. 

Scoring will be to two decimal points. 

Price is 30% of the overall tender score. 
The remaining 70% of the overall tender score will be based on an evaluation 
of quality.

The Council will evaluate Tenders on a Price/Quality basis.  A Price: Quality 
ratio of 70: 30 applies, in favour of quality.  The Tender shall be awarded to 
the highest scoring accepted Tenderer.  However, the Council is not bound to 
accept the highest scoring or any tender.

The Evaluation Panel will first mark questions 1, 2 & 3 of Section 9 in Stage 2. 

Tenderers must achieve a score 3 or more for questions 1, 2 & 3 of Section 9 
in Stage 2.

Tenderers who do not meet this threshold will be excluded from the process 
and will be notified along with other tenderers at the Tender Award stage. 

The overall tender evaluation scoring will be out of 70% for Quality and 30% 
for Price.  

Page 94



A worked example of quality score (70%) calculation is included below.

Tender scoring where the denominator is the maximum available weighted 
score;

e.g Maximum available marks for the section is 25 which then are 
proportioned to the overall quality. An example question which is weighted to 
35% is detailed below:

Tender A scores 3
Tender B scores 5
Tender C scores 2

Tender A 3 X   100 = 60 points = 21.00%
5

Tender B 5 X   100 = 100 points = 35.00%
5

Tender C 2         X    100  = 40 points     = 14.00%
5

The total weighted scores are added together to give 100% of the overall 
section then weighted to 70% as below:

Tender A scores 75.00%
Tender B scores 65.00%
Tender C scores 82.00%

Tender A    75.00 * 0.7 = 52.50%
Tender B    65.00 * 0.7 = 45.50%
Tender C    82.00 * 0.7 = 57.40%

A worked example of price score (30%) is shown below:

Tenders score will be cheapest tender / tender submitted * 10 and then 
proportioned to 100% of the section. 

Tender A submits £75,000
Tender B submits £65,000
Tender C submits £71,000

Tender A £65,000 X 10   =         8.67points      =        86.67%
                £75,000

Tender B £65,000 X  10 = 10.00 points      =  100.00%
                £65,000

Tender C £65,000 X 10                 =        9.15 points         =     91.55%
                £71,000

Page 95



Total Pricing Score (30%)

100% of the pricing section will be proportioned to 30% of the overall marks 
by using section score * 0.3

Tender A = 26.00%   

Tender B = 30.00% 

Tender C = 27.47%

Total Score for Quality and Price

Tender A = 78.50%

Tender B = 75.50%

Tender C = 84.87%

Page 96



3.7 Overall Quality Evaluation Scoring Details

SECTION 1 ORGANISATION 
INFORMATION

INFORMATION ONLY

SECTION 2 ECONOMIC AND 
FINANCIAL STANDING

PASS/FAIL

SECTION 3 HEALTH AND SAFETY PASS/FAIL

SECTION 4 SAFEGUARDING PASS/FAIL

SECTION  5 EQUALITY PASS/FAIL

SECTION 6 REFERENCES PASS/FAIL

SECTION 7 PREMIER SUPPLIER 
PROGRAMME

PASS/FAIL

SECTION 8 MODERN SLAVERY ACT INFORMATION ONLY

SECTION 9 TECHNICAL CAPACITY EVALUATION DETAILED 
BELOW

Page 97



Tenderers must answer questions. 

Award Criteria Detail Weighting Overall Weight 
Q1 30%
Q2 25%
Q3 25%
Q4 10%

Questions

Q5 10%

70%

PRICE (Financial 
Section)

Year One 
submitted price 100% 30%

Page 98



STAGE ONE – SUPPLIER QUESTIONNAIRE

SECTION 1: ORGANISATIONAL INFORMATION 

This section must be completed. It is for information and will not be scored.

The term ‘Organisation’ in this questionnaire refers to all joint partnership/consortium 
members. Each Organisation is required to contribute to the information/method 
statements put forward, so that a comprehensive answer is presented on behalf of 
the tenderer. Collectively, each entity submitting a tender (whether it is a single 
organisation or a joint partnership/consortium) is referred to as a tenderer.

FOR INFORMATION ONLY

Section 1.1 Organisational Information
Question 
number

Question Response

1.1(a) Full name of the potential supplier submitting the 
information

1.1(b) – (i) Registered office address (if applicable)

1.1(b) – (ii) Registered website address (if applicable)

1.1(c) Trading status 
a) public limited company
b) limited company 
c) limited liability partnership 
d) other partnership 
e) sole trader 
f) third sector
g) other (please specify your trading 

status)

1.1(d) Date of registration in country of origin

1.1(e) Company registration number (if applicable)

1.1(f) Charity registration number (if applicable)

1.1(g) Head office DUNS number (if applicable)

1.1(h) Registered VAT number 

1.1(k) Trading name(s) that will be used if successful in 
this procurement

1.1(l) Relevant classifications (state whether you fall 
within one of these, and if so which one)

a) Voluntary Community Social 
Enterprise (VCSE)
b) Public service mutual

1.1(m) Are you a Small, Medium or Micro Enterprise Yes ☐
No   ☐

Page 99



(SME)1?

1.1(l) Does any member of your organisation have a 
relative(s) who is employed by Barnsley MBC / 
is an elected member of the council?

If yes please give details

Yes ☐
No   ☐

1.1(o) Is your organisation registered under the Data 
Protection Act 1998?

If yes please provide your Registration 
Number:

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Please note: A criminal record check for relevant convictions may be undertaken for 
the preferred suppliers, and the persons of significant in control

Section 1.2 Bidding Model
Question 
number

Question Response

1.2(a) - (i) Are you bidding as the lead 
contact for a group of economic 
operators?

Yes ☐
No   ☐
 If yes, please provide details listed in 
questions 1.2(a) (ii), (a) (iii) and to 1.2(b) (i), 
(b) (ii), 1.3, Section 2 and 3.
If no, and you are a supporting bidder please 
provide the name of your group at 1.2(a) (ii) 
for reference purposes, and complete 1.3, 
Section 2 and 3.

1.2(a) - (ii) Name of group of economic 
operators (if applicable)

1.2(a) - (iii) Proposed legal structure if the 
group of economic operators 
intends to form a named single 
legal entity prior to signing a 
contract, if awarded. If you do not 
propose to form a single legal 
entity, please explain the legal 
structure.

1.2(b) - (i) Are you or, if applicable, the group 
of economic operators proposing 
to use sub-contractors?

Yes ☐
No   ☐

1.2(b) - (ii) If you responded yes to 1.2(b)-(i) please provide additional details for each sub-
contractor in the following table: we may ask them to complete this form as well.

Name

Registered address

Page 100



Trading status

Company registration 
number

Head Office DUNS 
number (if applicable)

Registered VAT 
number

Type of organisation

SME (Yes/No)

The role each sub-
contractor will take in 
providing the works 
and /or supplies e.g. 
key deliverables
The approximate % of 
contractual obligations 
assigned to each sub-
contractor

If you have indicated in the Selection Questionnaire question that you are part of a wider group, 
please provide further details below: 

1.2(c) - (i) Name of organisation

1.2(c) - (ii) Relationship to the Supplier 
completing these questions

1.2(c) - (iii) Are you able to provide parent 
company accounts if requested to 
at a later stage?

Yes ☐
No   ☐
N/A  ☐

1.2(c) - (iv) If yes, would the parent company 
be willing to provide a guarantee if 
necessary?

Yes ☐
No   ☐
N/A  ☐

1.2(c) - (v) If no, would you be able to obtain a 
guarantee elsewhere (e.g. from a 
bank)? 

Yes ☐
No   ☐
N/A  ☐

Contact details and declaration

I declare that to the best of my knowledge the answers submitted and information 
contained in this document are correct and accurate.
I declare that, upon request and without delay I will provide the certificates or 
documentary evidence referred to in this document.
I understand that the information will be used in the selection process to assess my 
organisation’s suitability to be invited to participate further in this procurement.
I understand that the authority may reject this submission in its entirety if there is a 
failure to answer all the relevant questions fully, or if false/misleading information or 
content is provided in any section.
I am aware of the consequences of serious misrepresentation.

1 See EU definition of SME: http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/sme/facts-figures-analysis/sme-
definition/ 

Page 101

http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/sme/facts-figures-analysis/sme-definition/
http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/sme/facts-figures-analysis/sme-definition/


Section 1.3 Contact details and declaration
Question 
number

Question Response

1.3(a) Contact name

1.3(b) Name of organisation

1.3(c) Role in organisation

1.3(d) Phone number

1.3(e) E-mail address

1.3(f) Postal address

1.3(g) Signature 
(electronic is acceptable)

1.3(h) Date

SECTION 2: ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL STANDING

The information provided in this section will be used to assess your financial position 
and therefore suitability for the contract.

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND WILL CONSTITUTE 
PASS / FAIL.

Section 2 (a) Economic and Financial Standing 

Question 
Number

Question Response

2.1 Are you able to provide a copy of 
your audited accounts for the last 
two years, if requested?
If no, can you provide one of the 
following: answer with Y/N in the 
relevant box.

Yes ☐
No   ☐

2.2 A statement of the turnover, Profit 
and Loss Account/Income 
Statement, Balance 
Sheet/Statement of Financial 
Position and Statement of Cash 

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Page 102



Flow for the most recent year of 
trading for this organisation.

2.3 A statement of the cash flow 
forecast for the current year and a 
bank letter outlining the current 
cash and credit position.

Yes ☐
No   ☐

2.4 Alternative means of 
demonstrating financial status if 
any of the above are not available 
(e.g. forecast of turnover for the 
current year and a statement of 
funding provided by the owners 
and/or the bank, charity accruals 
accounts or an alternative means 
of demonstrating financial status).

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Evaluation Methodology for Economic and Financial Stability  

Where the tenderer has stated ‘Yes willing to provide any of the following if 
requested’: 

 A  copy of your audited accounts for the last two years
 A statement of the turnover, Profit and Loss Account/Income Statement, 

Balance Sheet/Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flow 
for the most recent year of trading for this organisation

 A statement of the cash flow forecast for the current year and a bank letter 
outlining the current cash and credit position

 Alternative means of demonstrating financial status if any of the above are not 
available

The successful service provider will be required to provide evidence of the above 
and satisfy Barnsley MBC of the financial suitability to preform through the 
production of the above prior to any final award of the contract.

Production of any financial information stated above must be provided with 24 hours 
of request.

Any tender award will be provisional subject to the provision of the information and 
that the financial information provided satisfies Barnsley MBC, the organisation is 
suitable to provide the contract.

Failure to provide the information stated in the tender submission within 24 hours of 
request and / or to satisfy Barnsley MBC of your financial suitability to perform the 
contract will result in your organisation not being awarded the contract.   
   

Page 103



Explanation of the Financial Assessment Process 

The aim of the financial assessment process is to allow the Authority to make a risk-
based judgement on the ability of the bidder to support a contract from a financial 
perspective. The assessment process will focus on:

 Analysis of significant items in the accounts including turnover and trading 
results and their trends, cash movements, Balance Sheet strengths & 
weaknesses and any financial ‘warning signals’

 Financial ratio analysis – including liquidity, gearing, solvency and profitability
 Credit reference checks – these will be obtained for each bidder (and where 

applicable ultimate parent company) 

Where applicable, information on ultimate parent company accounts and financial 
information may also be requested to assess a companies’ financial ability to support 
a contract  

Consideration of each of the above will be used to help inform judgement on the 
level of financial risk associated with the bidder (and parents if applicable).  Based 
on the results of the above the Financial Appraiser will award the bidder with a ‘Pass’ 
or ‘Fail’ score

Pass - indicates no significant concerns over the financial capacity of the bidder to 
support the contract

Fail - indicates significant concerns over the financial capacity of the bidder to 
support the contract or has stated unwilling to provide any information 

If further guidance is required on the financial assessment undertaken by Barnsley 
MBC prior to completing the tender documentation, please raise a message via the 
YORtender system – www.yortender.co.uk and you will be contacted by the 
appropriate person to talk you through the process.

Score – PASS / FAIL

NOTE: Prior to a ‘fail’ being issued the Council’s Financial Appraiser will take 
reasonable steps to contact the Bidder in order to discuss the reasons behind the 
‘fail’ rating and if necessary seek further clarification.

The information provided in this section will be used to assess your insurances and 
therefore suitability for the contract.

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND WILL CONSTITUTE 
PASS / FAIL.

Section 2 (b) Insurance

Question 
number

Question Response

2.5 Please self-certify whether you 
already have, or can commit to 
obtain, prior to the 

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Page 104

http://www.yortender.co.uk/


commencement of the contract, 
the levels of insurance cover 
indicated below:  

Y/N  

Employer’s (Compulsory) Liability 
Insurance = £10m

Public Liability Insurance = £5m

Professional Indemnity Insurance 
= £2m

Pass - Tenderer has the required minimum levels of all stated insurance/ or is willing 
to obtain levels if successful in the tender. The successful Service Provider has 
ticked ‘Willing to Provide’, policies must be submitted prior to Contract sign off stage.  

Any tender award will be provisional subject to the provision of the insurance 
requirements that meet those stated in the tender documentation.  

Failure to provide the insurance information stated in the tender submission within 24 
hours of request   will result in your organisation not being awarded the contract.   

Fail - has indicated does not have the required levels of insurance for all insurance 
requirements and are not willing to obtain

Page 105



SECTION 3: HEALTH AND SAFETY

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND COMPLIANCE OR 
OTHERWISE WILL CONSTITUTE PASS / FAIL.

Section 3 HEALTH AND SAFETY

Question 
number

Question Response

3.1. Please self-certify that your 
organisation has a Health and 
Safety Policy that complies with 
Safety in Procurements Scheme 
or equivalent  

Yes ☐
No   ☐

3.2. Has your organisation or any of 
its Directors or Executive Officers 
been in receipt of 
enforcement/remedial orders in 
relation to the Health and Safety 
Executive (or equivalent body) in 
the last 3 years? 

If your answer to this question 
was “Yes”, please provide details 
in a separate Appendix of any 
enforcement/remedial orders 
served and give details of any 
remedial action or changes to 
procedures you have made as a 
result.
 
The authority will exclude 
bidder(s) that have been in 
receipt of enforcement/remedial 
action orders unless the bidder(s) 
can demonstrate to the 
authority’s satisfaction that 
appropriate remedial action has 
been taken to prevent future 
occurrences or breaches.     

Yes ☐
No   ☐

3.3. If you use sub-contractors, do you 
have processes in place to check 
whether any of the above 
circumstances apply to these 
other organisations?

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Page 106



SECTION 4: SAFEGUARDING

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND COMPLIANCE OR 
OTHERWISE WILL CONSTITUTE PASS / FAIL

Section 4 SAFEGUARDING

Question 
number

Question Response

4.1. Does your organisation’s have a policy to 
demonstrate compliance with safeguarding 
legislation and local procedures, see link below 
(http://www.safeguardingchildrenbarnsley.com/) 

It is essential that the service provider is aware of 
the legislation regarding safeguarding and can 
ensure compliance with such legislation, 
particularly since its employees will be in contact 
with children and vulnerable adults, as part of 
delivering this service.

Employees may be working in people’s homes or 
alone in a building being used by the public so it is 
vital that the service provider has satisfactory 
policies in place to ensure its staff are safe when 
working alone.

Safeguarding Policy which includes:

 Recruitment checks;
 Training;
 Whistleblowing;
 Internal systems that identify a safeguarding 

concern that align to the local adult and 
children safeguarding procedures;

 Reporting, investigation and management of 
incidents;

 Monitoring.

Lone Worker Policy

NOTE: Copies of the policies must be attached and 
validated or the application will fail.

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Page 107

http://www.safeguardingchildrenbarnsley.com/


SECTION 5: EQUALITY  

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND COMPLIANCE OR 
OTHERWISE WILL CONSTITUTE PASS / FAIL

Section 5 EQUALITY 

Question 
number

Question Response

5.1. Is your policy as an employer to 
comply with anti-discrimination 
legislation,  and to treat all people 
fairly and equally, so that no one 
group of people is treated less 
favourably than others?

If yes please enclose policy 
statement:

Policy enclosed demonstrates the 
organisation, as an employer, 
treats all people equally and 
fairly.  

Yes ☐
No   ☐

5.2 In the last three years, has any 
finding of unlawful discrimination 
been made against your 
organisation by an Employment 
Tribunal, an Employment Appeal 
Tribunal or any other court (or in 
comparable proceedings in any 
jurisdiction other than the UK)?

A Yes response will constitute a 
fail.

Yes ☐
No   ☐

5.3 In the last three years, has your 
organisation had a complaint 
upheld following an investigation 
by the Equality and Human 
Rights Commission or its 
predecessors (or a comparable 
body in any jurisdiction other than 
the UK), on grounds of alleged 
unlawful discrimination?  

Yes ☐
No   ☐

5.4 If you have answered “yes” to 
one or both of the questions in 
this module, please provide, as a 
separate Appendix, a summary of 
the nature of the investigation 
and an explanation of the 
outcome of the investigation to 
date.

Yes ☐
No   ☐
N/A   ☐

Page 108



If the investigation upheld the 
complaint against your 
organisation, please use the 
Appendix to explain what action 
(if any) you have taken to prevent 
unlawful discrimination from 
reoccurring.

You may be excluded if you are 
unable to demonstrate to the 
authority’s satisfaction that 
appropriate remedial action has 
been taken to prevent similar 
unlawful discrimination 
reoccurring.    

A Yes response will constitute a  
fail and where  council deems 
any response has failed to 
demonstrate any remedial action 
taken has prevented the unlawful 
discrimination re occurring

Tenderers must achieve a PASS 
in all three questions of this 
section to achieve a pass for the 
Equality Section  

SECTION 6: REFERENCES 

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND COMPLIANCE OR 
OTHERWISE WILL CONSTITUTE A PASS / FAIL

Section 6 REFERENCES 

Question 
number

Question

6.1  Please provide details of two contracts, in any combination from either the 
public or private sector; voluntary, charity or social enterprise (VCSE) that 
are relevant to our requirement. VCSEs may include samples of grant-
funded work. Contracts for supplies or services should have been 
performed during the past three years

Contract 1 Contract 2

Name of customer 
organisation
Point of contact in 
the organisation
Position in the 
organisation
E-mail address

Page 109



Description of 
contract
Contract Start 
date

Contract 
completion date
Estimated 
contract value

SECTION 7: PREMIER SUPPLIER PROGRAMME

QUESTIONS IN THIS SECTION ARE MANDATORY AND COMPLIANCE OR 
OTHERWISE WILL CONSTITUTE A PASS / FAIL

Section 7 PREMIER SUPPLIER PROGRAMME

Question 
number

Question Response

7.1 To help the Council meet the requirements of 
the Prompt Payment Code, achieve its 
corporate priority with regards to supporting 
the economy and also the agenda to trade 
electronically, the Council has launched a 
Premier Supplier Programme. Further details 
can be found at http://response.oxygen-
finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage

How does the Programme Work?

The Council's standard payment terms are 30 
days from the receipt of a valid invoice.  
Joining the Premier Supplier Programme 
means that all invoices will be paid as soon as 
the Council is satisfied that the applicable 
goods / services have been provided for that 
invoicing period. 

This early payment attracts a rebate which is 
automatically calculated on the payment date 
and then deducted from each invoice value at 
the point of payment. The maximum amount 
deducted from the invoice value is 1.25% for 
payment on day 7 and thereafter reducing on 
a sliding scale to nil on day 30. 
For the avoidance of doubt the "payment 
date" is the date on which the payment leaves 
the Councils bank account and not the date it 
arrives in the suppliers’ bank account)

Page 110

http://response.oxygen-finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage
http://response.oxygen-finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage


Are you already a member of the Premier 
Supplier Programme?

If no are you willing to be a member of the 
Premier Supplier Programme?

For all revenue contracts, signing up to the 
Premier Supplier Programme is mandatory. 
Failure to be / to be willing to be a member of 
this Programme will result in your application 
not being considered further.  For further 
details of the Programme please click here 
http://response.oxygen-
finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage
.

Yes ☐
No   ☐

Yes ☐
No   ☐

SECTION 8: MODERN SLAVERY ACT

Modern Slavery Act 2015: Requirements under Modern Slavery Act 2015

Section 8 Modern Slavery Act 2015: Requirements under Modern Slavery Act 20152

Question 
number

Question Response

7.1 Are you a relevant commercial organisation as 
defined by section 54 ("Transparency in supply 
chains etc.") of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 
("the Act")?

Yes   ☐
N/A   ☐

7.2 If you have answered yes to question 1 are you 
compliant with the annual reporting 
requirements contained within Section 54 of the 
Act 2015?

Yes   ☐
Please provide relevant the url 
…

No    ☐
Please provide an explanation

2 Procurement Policy Note 9/16 Modern Slavery Act 2015

Page 111

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/procurement-policy-notes


STAGE TWO: TECHNICAL CAPACITY (70% of the overall score)

Criteria and evaluation methodology

The invitation to tender process and subsequent evaluation will be conducted in a manner 
that ensures tenders are evaluated fairly to ascertain the most economically advantageous 
tender that meets the required quality standards. 

Each Lot will be scored individually against the weighting criteria outlined below.  Each 
quality response has been weighted and Providers should familiarise themselves with these 
weightings.  

Price 30
Quality 70

Price will be evaluated in relation to the overall budget and will have a weighted score of 30.  
Quality will be evaluated overall in relation to the responses to the quality questions below 
with a weighted score of 70.  

SCORING MATRIX 
All the tenderer’s method statements will be evaluated against the following scoring matrix 
which covers scores for 0-5.  
Score Score 

Standards
Specification

5 Excellent A thorough detailed and considered response which has 
covered all the areas of the question as a minimum with 
high level relevant and detailed information backed up 
with clear evidence demonstrating a coherent and robust 
understanding of the service requirements with no areas 
of concern.  

4 Good A detailed and considered  response which has covered 
all the areas of the question  with  relevant and detailed 
information backed up with  evidence demonstrating a 
good understanding of the service requirements with 
limited areas of concern 

3 Average Response provides a satisfactory description which 
addresses all the main areas of the question but lacks 
detail in some areas including information and evidence 
and does not demonstrate a full understanding of the 
service requirements.  

2 Poor Response provides a limited description which has failed 
to addresses many of areas of the question and lacks 
detail, clarity, information and evidence regarding many 
areas of the question, demonstrate a poor understanding 
of the service requirements.  

Page 112



1 Very Poor Response provides a very limited description which has 
failed to most of areas of the question with little detail, 
clarity, information and evidence regarding most areas of 
the question, has not demonstrated an understanding of 
the service requirements.  

0 Unacceptable An explanation is not provided 
And/or Does not relate to the question asked.

Section 9 Technical Capacity (70%)

Question 
number

Please outline the skills and experience your organisation has to support 
local people to maximise their income by supporting them to:

- Claim In-work benefits and associated benefits
- Claim Disability and health related benefits
- Manage their existing debts
- Manage their income more successfully
- Promote the services offered to the wider community

1 – 
30% 
Weighting

Maximum words(1500)
Answer: 

What do you see as the forthcoming challenges likely to result from 
continuing national welfare reforms? How would you plan to manage the 
impact of this on the delivery of these services?

2 – 
25% 
Weighting

Maximum words(1000) 
Answer:

Page 113



Case Study
A client contacts you by phone and explains that she has not been able to 
attend any of your drop-in advice sessions because they conflict with her 
working hours.

The client is a lone parent with a child, who is working for 16 hours per 
week and is self employed as a cleaner. She is currently receiving in-work 
benefits (Tax Credits and Housing/ Council Tax Benefits). Her 
circumstances have not changed in the last four years. 
She has received a letter 2 months ago from the Tax Credit office stating 
that they were cancelling her Working Tax Credit with immediate effect, for 
the following reasons:

 They considered that she was working less than the required 16 
hours per week to qualify for Tax Credits and

 They now didn’t consider her business to be commercial

The client has already asked the Tax Credit office to reconsider their 
decision, on the grounds that she considers both of these reasons to be 
inaccurate, but they have upheld their original decision.
The client is already in debt as a result of her reduced income, and is 
becoming increasingly anxious and depressed, to the point where she is 
finding it difficult to cope with both her work and her responsibilities as a 
single parent. She also expressed feeling out of her depth in terms of 
managing her income. 

Please outline:
- What additional information you might need before you can help 

this client 
- What you would see as the major issues facing this client, and 

how you would approach resolving them
- The actions you would need to take in order to help the client
- Any actions the client would need to take
- Any specialist referral or signposting to other agencies needed 

3 –
25% 
Weighting

Maximum words(1000) 
Answer:

Page 114



What do you see as the major issues in ensuring a ‘good fit’ between the 
local advice services funded by the South Area Council and the universal 
and triaged services offered by other providers?

4 – 
10% 
Weighting

Maximum words(1000) 
Answer:

How could you improve upon the existing locally based advice and 
information contract currently in place, funded by the South Area Council?
 

5 –
10% 
Weighting

Maximum words(1000) 
Answer:

Page 115



SECTION 3

PRICING SCHEDULE, FORM OF TENDER
AND APPENDICES

Page 116



PRICING SCHEDULE

PRICING SCHEDULE

1. Tenderers are to price for all items included in the Service Specification and their responses to the Tender Questionnaire, for year one.  
Tenderers are solely responsible to include all costs and will be deemed to have included all such items.

2. Tenderers are to price the Tender Breakdown and include all Spend Types (adding additional types where necessary), which will be 
cross-referenced to the answers given in the Tender Questionnaire.

 

Spend Type Year One
£

Staff (employed)
Materials

Accommodation
Supply Chain

Promotional costs
Other (Insert as 

necessary)

(Total of Year One– To 
be carried to Form of 

Tender)

Totals £

P
age 117



PRICING SCHEDULE (Cont’d)

PAYMENT PROFILE:

1. Tenderers are required to distribute the Tender Breakdown into the Payment Profile (Years One and Two), which will be used (if accepted by the 
Council) by the successful Service Provider for their monthly invoices, refer to Price and Payment Clause 18 of the Contract, contained in Section 4.

2. The Payment Profile should be split into as many Activities/Tasks as deemed necessary by Tenderers, but must include those stated, if applicable.

TOTAL
YEAR
ONE

£
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Month

Activity/Tasks
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Activity 1
Activity 2
Activity 3
Marketing

Recruitment
Attending 
Meetings

Producing 
Reports

(Insert as 
necessary)

Anticipated 
Monthly 

Payments

P
age 118



 
BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

FORM OF TENDER

SERVICE:

SERVICE REF:

I/We, the undersigned, hereby offer and undertake to carry out the whole of the Services required to 
be done in the execution of the above mentioned Service, including the provision of all materials, 
tools and plant, implements and labour in accordance with the Services Specification Tender 
Documentation and to comply in all respects with the Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council’s 
Standing Orders with respect to Contracts for the sum of:  (in words) 
__________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________ (£ _________________)

I/We confirm that I/We have the capability and resources to meet all requirements of the brief in 
terms of quality, cost and time.

I/We agree to the above tender being valid for 90 days

I/We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Tender received and that 
Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council will not be responsible for any expense incurred in preparing 
this Tender

Dated this ________________________ day of ______________________________ 2017 _____

Signed ______________________________________________________ ____ on behalf of 

Company, Firm etc _______________________________________________________________

Address ________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

Telephone No:  ________________________________ Fax No:  __________________________

Witnessed by: (Signature) _____________________________ (Name) _____________________

Address _______________________________________________________________________ 

Page 119



BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

APPENDIX 2

ANTI-COLLUSION CERTIFICATE – GOODS, WORKS AND SERVICES

TO: BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

I/We certify that this is a bona fide tender, intended to be competitive and that I/we have not 
(either personally or by anyone acting on my/our behalf)

1. Fixed the amount of the Tender (or the rate and prices quoted) by agreement with 
any person.

2. Communicated to anyone other than Barnsley MBC the amount or approximate 
amount or Terms of my/our proposed tender (other than in confidence in order to 
obtain quotations, professional advice or insurance necessary for the preparation of 
the tender).

3. Entered into any agreement or arrangement with any other person that he shall 
refrain from tendering or as to the amount or terms of any tender to be submitted by 
him.

4. Canvassed or solicited any local authority member, officer or other employee, or 
employee of Barnsley MBC in connection with the award of this contract or tender.

5. Offered, given or agreed to give any inducement or reward in respect of this or 
any other local authority contract or tender.

6. We further certify that the principles described above have been or will be 
brought to the attention of all sub-contractors, suppliers and associated companies 
providing goods, services or works connected with the tender and any contract 
entered into with such contractors, suppliers or associated companies will be made 
on the basis of compliance with the above principles by all parties.

SIGNED*    (1)         …………………………………………………………………

Status     ……………………………………………………………………………...

SIGNED*    (2) ………………………………………………………………...

Status …………………………………………………………………………….…..

For and on behalf of ………………………………………………………………….

Date …………………………………………………………………………………..

* Note:To be signed by the same signatories as the Form of Tender

Page 120



SECTION 4

Form of Contract / Terms and Conditions

Page 121



AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES

This Agreement is made with effect from <insert date> (the “Effective Date”)
BETWEEN: Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
(the “Council”)
AND: <Insert the provider> (the “Service Provider”)
together referred to as the “Parties” or individually a “Party”.
Term.  This Agreement will commence (on the Effective Date) and will continue for 
one year extendable at the Councils sole discretion for a further one year, by giving 
the Service Provider not less than one month’s written notice prior to <insert the end 
date>.  or terminated in accordance with Clause 7 of the Conditions (“the Term”).
Services.  The services to be provided by the Service Provider to the Council shall 
be as set out in Schedule 1 (“the Services”).
Entire Agreement.  This Agreement comprises:
(i) This signature page

(ii) The attached Conditions

(iii) Schedule 1 – Service Specification [to be inserted following tender exercise]

(iv) Schedule 2 – Services Fee [to be inserted following tender exercise]

(v) Schedule 3 – Implementation Plan [to be inserted following tender exercise]

The Agreement, effected by the signatures of the Parties below, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties relating to the Services and supersedes all 
prior negotiations, representations or understandings whether written or oral.  This 
Agreement may only by amended in writing in accordance with Clause 19 of the 
Conditions.

Signed on behalf of the Council Signed on behalf of the Service 
Provider

Name:..................................................... Name:.....................................................

Title: ....................................................... Title: .......................................................

Page 122



CONDITIONS
1. DEFINITIONS AND 
INTERPRETATION
1.1 In this Agreement, save where 
otherwise specifically defined in this 
Agreement or unless the context otherwise 
requires the following expressions shall have 
the following meanings:
“Authorised Officer” means the person or 
persons for the time being appointed by the 
Council, as being authorised to administer the 
Contract on behalf of the Council or such 
person(s) as may be nominated by the 
Authorised Officer to act on its behalf.
“Contract Manager” means the person or 
persons for the time being appointed by the 
Service Provider in accordance with Clause 
5.3.
“Nominated Officer” means the person 
nominated by each Party.
 “Services Fee” means the fee(s) payable to 
the Service Provider by the Council under the 
Agreement for the full and proper performance 
by the Service Provider of the Services, as set 
out in Schedule 2.
"Service Users" means the users of the 
services that the Service Provider supplies in 
this Agreement.
“Service Specification” means the 
specification of Services including quality and 
quantity as set out in Schedule 1.
“Staff” means all Staff employed or engaged 
by the Service Provider (including consultants 
and agency personnel) in any activity related 
to or connected with the provision of the 
Services.
1.2 A reference to the singular shall 
include the plural and vice versa and a 
reference to a gender shall include any 
gender.
1.3 The headings in this Agreement shall 
not affect its interpretation.
1.4 References to clauses, sub-clauses 
and Schedules are to clauses, sub-clauses 
and schedules of this Agreement.

2. THE SERVICES
2.1 The Service Provider shall provide the 
Services as set out in the Service Specification 
Schedule 1 and in accordance with the terms 
of this Contract.
2.2 In providing the Services, the Service 
Provider shall comply with and take into 
account all applicable laws, enactments, 
orders, regulations and other similar 
instruments, the requirements of any court with 
relevant jurisdiction and any local, national or 
supranational agency, inspectorate, minister, 
ministry, official or public or statutory person of 

the government of the United Kingdom or of 
the European Union.

3. SERVICE STANDARDS
3.1 The Service Provider shall deliver the 
Services in accordance with the Standards laid 
down in the Service Specification Schedule 1, 
the terms of this Contract and the terms of a 
Variation Notice, if any.
3.2 The Service Provider shall use 
reasonable skill and care in the performance of 
the Services and in accordance with generally 
recognised commercial good practice and best 
practice and standards in health and social 
care and/or industry for similar services.
3.3 The Service Provider shall comply in all 
respects to the standards and 
recommendations by the Authorised Officer.

3.4 The Service Provider shall provide all 
tools, plant, equipment, transport, fuel and 
other appliances required for the proper 
completion of the service.

3.4.1 The Service Provider shall ensure all 
tools, materials; plant and equipment used on 
the services will be used in a professional 
manner by staff and the volunteers they work 
with and will comply with all appropriate level 
and safety requirements

4. RIGHTS OF ACCESS AND 
INSPECTION

4.1 The Service Users shall gain access to 
the Services as set out in the Service 
Specification, Schedule 1.
4.2 The Service Provider shall allow officers 
of the Council access to the Service Provider’s 
premises, records and Staff to enable the 
Council to ascertain that the Services are 
being provided in accordance with the 
Contract and any relevant statutory provisions.  
The Council reserves all rights to undertake 
unannounced visits to the Service Providers 
premises and/or sites where the Services are 
delivered where deemed necessary.
4.3 Both Parties will ensure that they will 
comply with the Health and Safety Act 1974 
and all other applicable legal requirements and 
standards relating to the health and safety of 
those individuals performing the Services are 
met.

5. AUTHORISED OFFICER
5.1 The Council shall appoint an 
Authorised Officer to act on behalf of the 
Council for all purposes connected with the 
Contract. Details of that person are notified to 
the Service Provider.
5.2 The Council shall forthwith give notice 
in writing to the Service Provider of any 

Page 123



change in the identity, address and telephone 
numbers of the person appointed as 
Authorised Officer.  The Council shall use 
reasonable endeavours to give notice to the 
Service Provider before changing its 
Authorised Officer.
5.3 The Service Provider shall appoint a 
Contract Manager/s to act on behalf of the 
Service Provider for all purposes connected 
with the Services and this Contract. Details of 
the person must be notified to the Council.
5.4 The Service Provider shall forthwith 
give notice in writing to the Council of any 
change in the identity, address and telephone 
numbers of the person appointed as Contract 
Manager.  The Provider shall notify the Council 
before changing its Contract Manager/s.

6. SERVICE PROVIDER’S STAFF
6.1 The Service Provider shall employ 
sufficient properly trained, suitably qualified 
and experienced Staff, and shall ensure that 
such Staff have supplied proper prior 
employment references and shall further 
ensure that any specific requirements outlined 
in the Service Specification Schedule 1 are 
met.
6.2 The Service Provider’s Staff employed 
in respect of the provision of the Services shall 
at all times exercise due care and diligence 
and respect, in the execution of their duties 
and the Service Provider shall ensure that 
such persons are fully, properly and sufficiently 
instructed and supervised with regard to the 
provision of the Services.

7. DISCLOSING AND BARRING 
SERVICE – (DBS)
7.1 The Disclosing and Barring Service 
(“DBS”) is responsible for making barring 
decisions.  The requirement for Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS) checks will continue.
7.2 In accordance with Clause 7.1:

7.2.1 The Service Provider under the 
Protection of Vulnerable Adults (PoVA) and 
Protection of Children (PoC)  will now refer all 
new cases to DBS which has the responsibility 
of making any barring decisions;

7.2.2 the DBS shall automatically bar a 
person without a referral when they receive 
information from the police that the person has 
receive a new conviction or caution for a 
specified serious offence and as a result the 
Service Provider warrants that a person barred 
under this Clause shall be removed from the 
provision of the Services under this Contract 
with immediate effect.

7.3 The Council under its duty to the DBS 
shall respond to requests from the DBS for 
further information already held by the Council 
in relation to the Service Provider’s Staff and 
the Service Provider shall comply with such 
requirements as may be necessary.

7.4 The failure of the Service Provider to 
comply with this Clause 7 is deemed to be a 
criminal offence and as such the Service 
Provider shall familiarise itself with necessary 
updates on DBS currently published on 
https://www.gov.uk/disclosure-barring-service-
check.
7.5 In addition to Clause 7.4, failure by the 
Service Provider to comply with this Clause 7 
may lead to the immediate termination of this 
Contract at the Council’s sole discretion.
7.6 The Service Provider shall, insofar as 
it is able by Law to require disclosure by 
applicants of all criminal convictions in 
recruitment and engagement of Staff:
7.6.1 Obtain a full employment history and 
satisfactory references for all applicants;
7.6.2 confirm the applicant's legal right to 
work in the UK;
7.6.3 not allow any member of Staff to 
commence employment prior to the receipt of 
a satisfactory Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) checks as detailed in Clause 7.9 to 7.12 
below;
7.6.4 notify the Council immediately if any 
member of Staff who, subsequent to his/her 
commencement of employment as a member 
of Staff, receives a conviction or whose 
previous convictions become known to the 
Service Provider (or any employee of a sub-
contractor involved in the provision of the 
Services).
7.7 The Authorised Officer acting 
reasonably shall be entitled to require the 
Service Provider to remove immediately from 
the provision of the Services a named member 
of the Service Provider’s Staff. The Service 
Provider shall have the right to make 
representations to the Authorised Officer 
concerning such person.  After taking any 
representations into account, the Authorised 
Officer shall be entitled to confirm, revoke or 
vary his decision.
7.8 The Service Provider shall bear the 
cost of or costs arising from any Notice, 
instruction or decision of the Council under this 
Clause 7.

7.9 The Service Provider and their Staff 
will be required to undergo an enhanced DBS 
check before they will be allowed to start work. 
It is a criminal offence to employ a new 

Page 124

https://www.gov.uk/disclosure-barring-service-check
https://www.gov.uk/disclosure-barring-service-check


member of Staff working with vulnerable adults 
if they are not registered with the DBS. All 
such Staff will be required to be registered with 
the DBS and not be barred.
7.10 For this purpose the Rehabilitation of 
Offenders Act 1974 does not apply and the 
Service Provider and its Staff shall be required 
to disclose all convictions, cautions, 
reprimands and final warnings, including those 
that would be deemed as spent under the 
provisions of the Act.  The Service Provider 
shall comply with any instruction issued by the 
Council that the Service Provider shall not use 
any particular employee in the performance of 
this Contract where the Council has 
information that the safety or comfort of 
Service Users may be affected.
7.11 The Service Provider shall ensure that 
no person who discloses any convictions, 
cautions, reprimands and final warnings, or 
who is found to have any convictions following 
the results of a DBS check, is employed or 
engaged by the Service Provider or on the 
Service Provider’s behalf without informing the 
Council and ensuring a risk assessment has 
taken place.
7.12 The Service Provider shall ensure that 
the Council is kept advised at all times of any 
member of Staff who, subsequent to his/her 
commencement of employment as a member 
of Staff (or any employee of a sub-contractor 
involved in the provision of the Services), 
receives a conviction, caution, reprimand and 
final warnings or whose previous convictions 
become known to the Service Provider.

8. SAFEGUARDING

8.1 The Provider to ensure they are 
compliant with the Safeguarding Adults 
Procedures for South Yorkshire and 
Safeguarding Child Protection Procedures for 
South Yorkshire in order to promote and 
safeguard the health and wellbeing of 
vulnerable adults/children in their care.

8.2 Service Provider should identify an 
appropriate Safeguarding Manager who will 
ensure that all staff employed by the Service 
Provider are appropriately trained in the 
recognition of adult abuse and child abuse and 
procedural reporting requirements.
8.3 Service Provider to ensure that 
Safeguarding training is implemented, 
monitored and evidenced by a training matrix 
to include all staff.
8.4 If there are any concerns regarding 
the safeguarding of a vulnerable adult then the 
Service Provider shall ensure that a 
safeguarding referral is sent to the 
Safeguarding Adult Protection Inbox 

(adultprotection@barnsley.gov.uk) within 24 
hours.
8.5 Service Provider to adhere to all 
Safeguarding Adults procedural timeframes as 
outlined in the South Yorkshire Safeguarding 
Adults procedures.

8.6 If there are any concerns regarding the 
safeguarding of children then the provider shall 
ensure that a safeguarding referral is sent to 
the Safeguarding Children Inbox 
(safeguardingunit@barnsley.gov.uk) within 24 
hours.

8.7 The Provider to adhere to all 
Safeguarding Children procedural timeframes 
as outlined in the South Yorkshire Child 
Protection procedures

8.8 Where necessary the provider shall 
make a decision as to whether a staff member 
is suspended while investigations into 
safeguarding adults and or safeguarding 
children concerns are made. Dependent upon 
the level of risk identified, and if the member of 
staff is not suspended then the provider should 
ensure safeguards are in place to maintain the 
welfare of a vulnerable victim.

9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING
9.1 The Service Provider shall comply with 
the Performance Monitoring arrangements as 
set out in the Service Specification Schedule 
1.

10. COMPLIANCE
10.1 The Service Provider shall comply with 
and  supply the Council with written evidence 
demonstrating how it meets its obligations to 
both Service Users and its employees/ 
volunteers in respect of the Sex Discrimination 
Act 1975; the Race Relations Act 1976; the 
Disability Discrimination Act 1995; the Race 
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000; 
Employment Equality ion) and Employment 
Equality (Religion and Belief) Regulations 
2003; Race Relations Act 1976 (Amendment) 
Regulation 2003; Civil Partnerships Act 2004; 
Gender Recognition Act 2004; Disability 
Discrimination (Amendment) Act 2004, and 
Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004; Racial 
and Religious Hatred Act 2006; Equality Act 
2006; Employment Equality (Age) Regulation 
2006,  Mental Capacity Act 2005, Deprivation 
of Liberties Safeguard 2009 (DOLS) in respect 
of Service provision and workforce matters.
11.2 The Service Provider shall
co-operate fully with any Council initiative to 
raise awareness of the importance of Equality 
and Diversity including but not limited to 

Page 125

mailto:adultprotection@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:safeguardingunit@barnsley.gov.uk


ensuring that its Manager attends training 
events and conferences relating to Equality 
and Diversity when invited to do so in the 
expectation that information or knowledge 
acquired at such events will be cascaded to or 
shared with Staff as part of their continued 
training and development.
10.3 The Service Provider shall co-operate 
fully with any Council process for monitoring 
the effective implementation of the Council’s 
Equality and Diversity Policy as an integral 
part of a wider monitoring of Service provision 
including but not limited to an inspection of any 
records kept in relation to Staff training and 
associated workforce matters, and any records 
kept in relation to Service Users cared for or 
supported by the Service Provider within the 
requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998.

11. HUMAN RIGHTS
11.1 The Service Provider:
11.1.1 shall comply with the Human Rights 
Act 1998 (HRA) as if it were a ’Public Council’ 
within the meaning of the legislation;
11.1.2 acknowledges that it is unlawful to 
exercise functions deemed to be of a public 
nature in a way that is incompatible with those 
rights contained in the European Convention 
of Human Rights and incorporated into English 
Law by the HRA;
11.1.3 shall throughout the duration of this 
Agreement and at their own cost be subject to 
the same duty in respect of HRA in the same 
way as if they were the Council.

12. ENVIRONMENTAL
REQUIREMENTS
12.1 The Service Provider shall operate 
and comply with and provide for the Council on 
request a comprehensive environmental 
policy, which shall include details on, but are 
not limited to Purchasing of Goods and 
Services, Transport and Travel, Energy 
Usage, Waste and Recycling, Printing and 
Environmental Action Plans.

12.2 The Provider shall hold a valid waste 
carriers licence.

12.3 The Provider shall comply with all 
statutory provisions with regard to chemical 
treatments including:
12.3.1 The Food and Environment Protection 
Act 1985, the control of Pesticides Regulations 
1986 and such codes of practice as may be 
issued under the above Act.
12.3.2 The Health and Safety at Work etc. 
Act 1974 and such codes and guidance 
published by the Health and Safety Executive 
in furtherance of that Act.

12.3.3 The Poisons Act 1972 and the 
Poisonous Substances in Agriculture 
Regulations 1984.
12.3.4  The Control of Pollution Act 1974.

13. DATA PROTECTION ACT
13.1 Each Party, including its Staff, shall 
comply with the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act 1998 (the “DPA”) in relation to 
the provision of the Services and shall not 
knowingly or negligently by any act or 
omission, place the other Party in breach, or 
potential breach of the DPA.
13.2 The Service Provider shall, in 
accordance with the DPA, be notified and shall 
advise the Authorised Officer of its notification 
reference on the Public Register of Data 
Controllers.
13.3 The Service Provider shall ensure that 
it has in place appropriate technical and 
organisational measures to ensure the security 
of the personal data (and to guard against 
unauthorised or unlawful processing of the 
personal data and against accidental loss or 
destruction of, or damage to, the personal 
data), as required under the Seventh Data 
Protection Principle in schedule 1 to the DPA; 
and:
13.3.1 provide the Council with such 
information as the Council may reasonably 
require to satisfy itself that the Service 
Provider is complying with its obligations under 
the DPA;
13.3.2 immediately notify the Council of any 
breach of the security measures required to be 
put in place pursuant to this Clause 14; and
13.3.3 ensure that it does nothing knowingly 
or negligently, which places the Council in 
breach of the Council’s obligations under the 
DPA.
13.4 The Service Provider agrees to 
indemnify the Council against all costs that the 
Council incurs as a result of the Service 
Provider’s failure to comply with this Clause 
13.
13.5 The Service Provider shall ensure that 
personal data is not transferred to a country or 
territory outside the European Economic Area 
without the prior written consent of the Council.
13.6 On termination of this Contract, the 
Service Provider shall return all personal data 
or destroy or dispose of it in a secure manner 
and in accordance with any specific 
instructions issued by the Council.
13.7 The provision of this Clause 14 shall 
apply during the continuance of the Contract 
and indefinitely after its expiry or termination.

14. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

Page 126



14.1 The Service Provider recognises that 
the Council is subject to legal duties which 
may require the release of information under 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 
or any other applicable legislation or codes 
governing access to information and that the 
Council may be under an obligation to provide 
information on request.  Such information may 
include matters relating to, arising out of or 
under this Contract in any way.
14.2 The Service Provider will assist the 
Council to enable the Council to comply with 
its obligations under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 or other applicable 
legislation governing access to information.  In 
particular, it acknowledges that the Council is 
entitled to any and all information relating to 
the performance of this Contract.  In the event 
that the Council receives a request for 
information under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 or any other applicable legislation 
governing access to information, and requires 
the Service Providers assistance in obtaining 
the information that is the subject of such 
request or otherwise, the Service Provider will 
respond to any such request for assistance 
from the Council at its own cost and promptly 
and in any event within 10 days of receiving 
the Council request.
14.3 In the event that the Council receives a 
request for information relating to this Contract 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or 
any other applicable legislation governing 
access to information, the Council shall be 
entitled to disclose all information and 
documentation (in whatever form) as 
necessary to respond to that request in 
accordance with the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 or other applicable legislation 
governing access to information, save that in 
relation to any such information that is 
exempted or excepted information, the Council 
shall use reasonable endeavours to consult 
the Service Provider as soon as reasonably 
practicable and shall not:
14.3.1 confirm or deny that the information in 
question is held by the Council, or
14.3.2 disclose the information requested, to 
the extent that in the Council’s sole opinion 
(including on any question where relevant of 
the public interest) (having taken into account 
the views of the Service Provider) an 
exemption or exception should be applied in 
accordance with the relevant section of the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the 
Environmental Information Regulations in the 
circumstances.

15. TRANSPARENCY

15.1 The parties acknowledge that, 
notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary, 
the text of this Contract, and any Schedules to 
this Contract, is not Confidential Information.  
The Council shall be responsible for 
determining in its absolute discretion whether 
any part of the Contract or its Schedules is 
exempt from disclosure in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.
15.2 Notwithstanding any other term of this 
Contract, the Service Provider hereby gives its 
consent for the Council to publish the Contract 
in its entirety, including from time to time 
agreed changes to the Contract, to the general 
public in whatever form the Council agrees.
16. REPUTATION OF THE COUNCIL 
AND PUBLIC SERVICE CONSIDERATIONS
16.1 The Service Provider shall not, and 
shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure 
that its Staff shall not, knowingly do or omit to 
do anything in relation to this Contract or their 
other activities which may bring the standing or 
reputation of the Council into disrepute or 
attract adverse publicity to the Council.

17. PRICE AND PAYMENT
17.1 The Services Fee shall be exclusive of 
VAT which shall be payable, if applicable, by 
the Council in addition to such Services Fee 
upon receipt of a valid tax invoice at the 
prevailing rate in force from time to time.
17.2 If payment is not made by the Due 
Date, in addition to its rights under the Late 
Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 
1998, the Service Provider may cancel and/or 
suspend the Services unless the Council upon 
receiving written notice immediately pays.
17.3 All rights of set off or deduction are 
hereby retained by the Councils.
17.4 The Council’s standard payment terms 
are 30 days from the receipt of a valid invoice. 
However, under its Premier Supplier 
Programme, ("the Programme") the Council 
will automatically pay invoices after seven (7) 
days once it is satisfied that the goods or 
services have been provided for that particular 
invoicing period.  This early payment attracts a 
rebate which is automatically calculated on the 
payment date and then deducted from each 
invoice value at the point of payment. The 
rebate is based upon the exact number of 
days by which payment is accelerated. The 
maximum amount deducted from the invoice 
value is 1.25% for payment on day 7, then 
operates on a reducing scale, to a nil 
deduction on day 30.  For the avoidance of 
doubt the payment date is the date the 
payment leaves the Council's bank account 
and not the date on which it arrives in the 
[suppliers]’ bank account.  Details of the 

Page 127



Programme can be found at 
http://response.oxygen-
finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage

18. VARIATIONS
18.1 In the event that either Party requires 
a change to the Specification and/or the terms 
of this Agreement, that Party shall immediately 
inform the other Party in writing.  Such 
change(s) shall not come into effect until a 
written acceptance of the proposed change(s), 
detailing any consequential amendments, is 
signed by the Parties Nominated Officers.
18.2 Any variations agreed by the Parties 
shall be in writing and signed by the Parties 
Nominated Officers.

19. SUSPENSION OF THE SERVICE
19.1 If the Council considers that the 
Service Provider is or may be in breach of its 
obligations under this Contract and as such 
the Council determines that this poses 
potential risks to Service Users, the Council 
shall have the right to suspend the Services 
wholly or in part, until any investigations are 
successfully concluded and in exercising this 
right, it shall not jeopardise in any way all other 
rights and remedies available to it.
19.2 Following a period of suspension as 
referred to above, the Council may as a result 
of any investigation:
19.2.1 terminate the Contract in accordance 
with Clause 21 below.
19.2.2 notify the Service Provider to resume 
the provision of the Services.

20. TERMINATION
20.1 Either Party shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement at any time during 
the Term by giving the other Party 3 (three) 
months’ notice of termination.
20.2 Subject to both Parties' compliance 
with Clause 20.1 above either Party shall be 
entitled to terminate the Agreement without 
liability to the other Party (the Defaulting 
Party”) by giving notice to the Defaulting Party 
at any time if the Defaulting Party commits a 
material breach of the Agreement, which in the 
case of a breach which is capable of remedy 
shall not have been remedied or substantive 
steps taken to remedy such breach within 30 
(thirty) days from the date of receipt by the 
Defaulting Party of a notice from the other 
Party identifying the breach and requiring its 
remedy.

21. CONFIDENTIALITY AND 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

21.1 Subject to Clause 14, all written 
information and data made available by one 
Party (“the Disclosing Party”) to the other (“the 
Receiving Party”) hereunder is confidential 
(“Confidential Information”) and each Party 
undertakes to treat such Confidential 
Information with the same care as it would 
reasonably treat its own confidential 
information.
21.2 Each Party shall use all reasonable 
endeavours to ensure that the Confidential 
Information is not copied or disclosed to any 
third party whatsoever.
21.3 Upon written request of the Disclosing 
Party or expiration or termination of this 
Agreement the Receiving Party will return to 
the Disclosing Party all Confidential 
Information not previously returned.
21.4 The obligations contained in this 
Clause 22 shall survive termination of this 
Agreement by ten (10) years.
21.5 Information shall not be considered as 
Confidential Information where it is:
21.5.1 already in the public domain other 
than through default of the Receiving Party;
21.5.2 already in the Receiving Party’s 
possession with no obligation of confidentiality; 
or
21.5.3 independently developed by the 
Receiving Party without reference to the 
Confidential Information.
21.6 Any samples, plans, drawings or 
information relating to the Services supplied to 
or specifically produced by one Party for the 
other, together with the copyright, design rights 
or any other intellectual property rights in the 
same, shall be the exclusive property of the 
Disclosing Party and shall be used solely by 
the Receiving Party for the purposes of this 
Agreement.

22. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
22.1 The Service Provider shall indemnify 
and keep indemnified the Council against any 
loss damage or liability suffered or incurred by 
the Council which arises directly or indirectly 
from the performance (including imperfect or 
attempted performance or non-performance) 
by the Service Provider of its obligations under 
this Contract.
22.2 The Service Provider shall effect and 
maintain with a reputable insurance company 
the following minimum insurance cover:

Employer’s liability £10,000,000 in 
respect of any one 
claim

Public liability £5,000,000 in respect 
of any one claim

Page 128

http://response.oxygen-finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage
http://response.oxygen-finance.com/BarnsleyCouncilPSP_Homepage


22.3 The Service Provider shall upon 
request by the Council and to the satisfaction 
of the Council produce written proof of such 
insurance and of the renewal of such 
insurance.
22.4 The Service Provider shall hold 
adequate insurance for all vehicles used by 
the Service Provider and ensure that any Staff 
using their motor vehicles to carry Service 
Users and/or Carers have valid business 
insurance on their motor vehicles and shall 
produce a copy of each certificate to the 
Authorised Officer if requested to do so 
provided that if the Council requests this 
information more often than once a year the 
Council shall meet the Service Provider’s 
reasonable cost of production.

23. FORCE MAJEURE
23.1 Neither Party shall be in breach of the 
Agreement if there is any total or partial failure 
of performance by it of its duties and 
obligations under the Agreement occasioned 
by an event of force majeure (“Force Majeure”) 
including by way of illustration and not 
exclusively; any act of God, fire, act of 
government or state, war, civil commotion, 
insurrection, embargo, prevention from or 
hindrance in obtaining raw materials, energy or 
other supplies, labour disputes of third parties 
of whatever nature and any other reason 
beyond its control.
23.2 A Party’s obligations under the 
Agreement shall be suspended during the 
period for which the reason described in 
Clause 23.1 continues and as soon as it is 
reasonably practicable after the said reason 
ceases to exist that Party shall give written 
advice to the other Party of that fact.  If such 
reason continues for a period of more than 60 
(sixty) days either Party shall have the right to 
terminate the Agreement upon giving 14 
(fourteen) days’ notice of termination to the 
other Party.

24. NOMINATED OFFICERS
24.1 As of the Effective Date, the persons 
or their deputies nominated by the Parties to 
monitor performance of the Service, to agree 
variations, payments and receive notices 
hereunder are:

For the Council:
Name: <insert name>

Address: Barnsley Metropolitan Borough 
Council
……………………………………………………
……………………………………
Tel:  Insert

Email:  Insert

For the Service Provider:
Name:  <insert name>

Address:..............................................................

Tel:
Email:
24.2 Either Party may change its 
Nominated Officer by giving reasonable notice 
hereunder.

25. INFORMATION AND MONITORING
25.1 The Nominated Officers shall meet 
formally at intervals not exceeding every 1 
(one) month from the Effective Date to 
consider any issues arising from the operation 
and performance of the Agreement.

25.2 The Service Provider shall throughout 
the Term, permit the Council’s Nominated 
Officer unrestricted access to the Provider’s 
relevant Staff, facilities and premises for the 
purpose of monitoring work carried out by the 
Provider in connection with this Agreement 
provided that the Council shall have given the 
Service Provider two (2) Normal Working Days 
prior written notice.
25.3 If, at any time during the Term, either 
Party becomes aware of any act or omission 
or proposed act or omission which hinders or 
prevents its performance of this Agreement it 
shall notify the other Party of the same without 
delay.
25.4 The Provider shall on reasonable 
notice comply with all written requests made 
by Permitted Third Parties as reasonably 
required in connection with the performance of 
their functions for:
25.4.1 Entry to the Providers premises at any 
reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting 
the provision of the Services; and
25.4.2 information used, generated or 
provided under the Services,
and the Provider shall give all such assistance 
and provide all such information and facilities 
as the Permitted Third Parties may reasonably 
require.

26. NOTICES
26.1 Any notice or other document to be 
given under the Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed to have been duly given 
if left or sent:
27.1.1 By hand; or
27.1.2 by first class post; or
27.1.3 by registered post; or
27.1.4 by facsimile or e-mail, (the

electronic media)

Page 129



to a Party at the addresses or relevant 
telecommunications number for such Party or 
such other address or number as the Party 
may from time to time designate by written 
notice to the other for such purpose.
26.2 Any notice or other document shall be 
deemed to have been received by the 
addressee 2 (two) Normal Working Days 
following the date of despatch of the notice or 
other document by post or where the notice or 
other document is sent by hand or is given by 
electronic media simultaneously with the 
delivery or transmission.  To prove the giving 
of a notice or other document it shall be 
sufficient to show that it was despatched.

27 GENERAL
27.1 This Agreement is personal to the 
Service Provider and the Service Provider 
shall not assign or transfer or purport to assign 
or transfer to any other person any of its rights 
or obligations under the Agreement nor shall it 
sub-contract any of its rights or obligations 
unless that
sub-contracting be with the prior written 
consent of the Council, such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld.
27.2 The rights and remedies of either 
Party in respect of this Agreement shall not be 
diminished, waived or extinguished by the 
granting of any indulgence, forbearance or 
extension of time by such Party to the other 
nor by failure of, or delay by the said Party in 
ascertaining or exercising of any such rights or 
remedies or in insisting upon strict 
performance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The Party of any breach of this 
Agreement shall not prevent the subsequent 
enforcement of any subsequent breach of that 
provision and shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of that or any 
other provision.  No waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
agreed by both Parties in writing.
27.3 The termination of this Agreement for 
any reason shall be without prejudice to any 
rights or obligations which shall have accrued 
or become due between the Parties prior to 
the date of termination.
27.4 The termination of this Agreement for 
any reason shall not affect the coming into 
force or the continuation in force of any 
provision of this Agreement which is expressly 
or by implication intended to come into or 
continue in force on or after such termination.
27.5 If any provision of this Agreement is 
held by any competent authority to be invalid 
or unenforceable in whole or in part the validity 
of the other provisions of this Agreement and 

the he provision in question shall not be 
affected thereby.
27.6 Nothing in this agreement shall create, 
or be deemed to create, a partnership or joint 
venture or relationship of employer and 
employee or principal and agent between the 
Parties.

28. REMEDIES FOR NON-
PERFORMANCE
28.1 In the event of a Party not performing 
according to the agreed terms of the 
Agreement, the following procedure will apply:
28.1.1 Where one Party considers that the 
other Party has not performed its obligations 
under the Agreement, that Party may request 
a meeting with the other Party by giving (two) 
weeks’ notice in writing.  Such meeting to 
include the Nominated Officers and 
representatives of the Parties responsible for 
the provision and receipt of the particular 
Services which have been under performed.
28.1.2 Following such meeting, the Party 
which has not performed adequately will be 
given a reasonable period to resolve such non-
performance to the satisfaction of the other 
Party.
28.2 Where the Party requesting such 
meeting is not reasonably satisfied that the 
other Party’s non-performance has been 
resolved, that Party will have the right, at its 
discretion, either to resolution in accordance 
with Clause 29 or to termination of the 
Agreement in accordance with Clause 20.

29. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
PROCEDURE
29.1 Where a Party agrees to resolve any 
dispute which arises out of this Agreement 
(“Dispute”) by negotiation, then each Party is 
to be represented by a person who:
29.1.1 Is a director or person of equivalent 
status with a Party, and
29.1.2 has had no direct day-to-day 
involvement in the relevant matter to settle the 
Dispute.
29.2 If the Parties are unable to settle any 
Dispute by negotiation under Clause 29.1 
within 30 (thirty) days of commencement of 
negotiations, the Parties will attempt to settle 
the Dispute by mediation in accordance with 
the Model Mediation Procedure of the Centre 
for Effective Dispute Resolution.
29.3 If, after Mediation, the Dispute remains 
unresolved between the Parties the Dispute 
shall be referred to and finally resolved by 
arbitration under the Rules of the Chartered 
Institute of Arbitrators.
29.4 Unless this Agreement has already 
been terminated, the Parties shall, 

Page 130



notwithstanding that any Dispute is subject to 
the dispute resolution procedure set out in 
Clause 28, continue to carry out their 
obligations in accordance with this Agreement.

30. NON-SOLICITATION
30.1 During the Term and for a period of 2 
(two) years after termination, neither Party 
shall solicit any employee engaged in the 
provision of the Services, including in the case 
of the Service Provider, its Staff, without the 
other Party’s prior written consent.

31. APPLICABLE LAW
31.1 This Agreement shall be governed and 
construed according to English Law.
31.2 A person who is not a party to this 
Agreement has no rights, express or implied, 
under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) 
Act 1999 to enforce any term of this 
Agreement.

32. TUPE

32.1. If the Authority has notified the Provider 
that it intends to tender or retender any 
Services, the Provider must within 20 
Business Days following written request 
(unless otherwise agreed in writing) 
provide the Authority with anonymised 
details of Staff engaged in the provision 
of the relevant Services who may be 
subject to TUPE. The Provider must 
indemnify and keep indemnified the 
relevant Authority and any new provider 
who provides any services equivalent to 
the Services or any of them after expiry 
or termination of this Contract or 
termination of a Service,
against any Losses in respect any 
inaccuracy in or omission from the 
information provided under this clause. 

32.2. During the 3 months immediately 
preceding the expiry of this Contract or 
at any time following a notice of 
termination of this Contract or of any 
Service being given, the Provider must 
not and must procure that its sub-
contractors do not, without the prior 
written consent of the Authority, in 
relation to any persons engaged in the 
provision of the Services or the relevant 
Service: 

(a) terminate or give notice to 
terminate the employment of any 
person engaged in the provision of 
the Services or the relevant Service 
(other than for gross misconduct); 

(b) increase or reduce the total 
number of people employed or 
engaged in the provision of the 
Services or the relevant Service by 
the Provider and any sub-contractor 
by more than 5% (except in the 
ordinary course of business); 

(c) propose, make or promise to make 
any material change to the remuneration 
or other terms and conditions of 
employment of the individuals engaged in 
the provision of the Services or the 
relevant Service; 

(d) replace or relocate any persons 
engaged in the provision of the 
Services or the relevant Service or 
reassign any of them to duties 
unconnected with the Services or the 
relevant Service; and/or 
(e) assign or redeploy to the 
Services or the relevant Service any 
person who was not previously a 
member of Staff engaged in the 
provision of the Services or the 
relevant Service.

32.3. The Provider must indemnify and keep 
indemnified the Authority and any new 
provider who provides any services 
equivalent to the Services or any of 
them after expiry or termination of this 
Contract or any Service, against any 
Losses in respect of: 

(a) the employment or termination of 
employment of any person employed 
or engaged in the delivery of the 
relevant Services by the Provider 
and/or any sub-contractor before the 
expiry or termination of this Contract 
or of any Service which arise from 
the acts or omissions of the Provider 
and/or any sub-contractor;

 (b) claims brought by any other 
person employed or engaged by the 
Provider and/or any sub-contractor 
who is found to or is alleged to 
transfer to the Authority or new 
provider under TUPE; and/or 

(c) any failure by the Provider and/or 
any sub-contractor to comply with its 
obligations under TUPE in 
connection with any transfer to the 
Authority or new provider.

Page 131



32.4. The Authority must use all reasonable 
endeavours to procure that any new 
provider who provides any services 
equivalent to the Services or the 
relevant Service after expiry or 
termination of this Contract or of any 
Service will indemnify and keep 
indemnified the Provider and/or any 
sub-contractor against any Losses in 
respect of: 

(a) any failure by the new provider to 
comply with its obligations under 
TUPE in connection with any 
relevant transfer under TUPE to the 
new provider;

(b) any claim by any person that any 
proposed or actual substantial 
change by the new provider to the 
persons' working conditions or any 
proposed measures of the new 
provider are to that person's 
detriment, whether that claim arises 
before or after the date of any 
relevant transfer under TUPE to the 
new provider on expiry or termination 
of this Contract or of any Service; 
and/or 

(c) any claim by any person in 
relation to any breach of contract 
arising from any proposed measures 
of the new provider, whether that 
claim arises before or after the date 
of any relevant transfer under TUPE 
to the new provider on expiry or 
termination of this Contract or of any 
Service.

Page 132



South Area Council Advice Services contract

Case Study

A client contacts you by phone and explains that she has not been able to attend any of your 
drop-in advice sessions because they conflict with her working hours.

The client is a lone parent with a child, who is working for 16 hours per week and is self 
employed as a cleaner. She is currently receiving in-work benefits (Tax Credits and Housing/ 
Council Tax Benefits). Her circumstances have not changed in the last four years. 

She has received a letter 2 months ago from the Tax Credit office stating that they were 
cancelling her Working Tax Credit with immediate effect, for the following reasons:

 They considered that she was working less than the required 16 hours per week to 
qualify for Tax Credits and

 They now didn’t consider her business to be commercial
The client has already asked the Tax Credit office to reconsider their decision, on the 
grounds that she considers both of these reasons to be inaccurate, but they have upheld 
their original decision.

The client is already in debt as a result of her reduced income, and is becoming increasingly 
anxious and depressed, to the point where she is finding it difficult to cope with both her 
work and her responsibilities as a single parent. She also expressed feeling out of her depth 
in terms of managing her income. 

Please outline in a maximum of 1000 words:

- What additional information you might need before you can help this client 

- What you would see as the major issues facing this client, and how you 
would approach resolving them

- The actions you would need to take in order to help the client

- Any actions the client would need to take

- Any specialist referral or signposting to other agencies needed 

Page 133



Current Service Schedule

Page 134



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

1

Business Case Template 

Version Control

Version Editor Date 
Version One Kate Faulkes 14th February 2017

Project: South Area Council Local Advice Services 

Directorate: Communities

Date: 14th February 2017

Description of the Goods and Service

The contracted service will use a range of local venues to provide the full range of advice and 
information services to local people across the South Area, by offering: 

 The full range of Welfare Rights issues, including encouraging the full maximising of in and 
out of work benefit claims

 Information and advice around the impact of Welfare Reforms, including support and/or 
representation at appeals and tribunals

 Debt counselling and the agreement of formal financial settlements with creditors

 Issues related to health, employment, education, travel etc.

 Housing related issues, including support to avoid homelessness

 Financial, consumer/utilities and legal issues

 Signposting and referral to other specialist provision, including specialist support, training, 
employability/job-search, Credit Union & money management

This will require the employment of staff to continue to provide a fully qualified and experienced 
outreach team to be deployed across the South Area, offering a series of regular ‘slots’ of face-to-
face advice delivered in easily accessible buildings across each ward. Use of these buildings has 
already been negotiated and will not need to be done by the provider/s,

The provider must deliver at least one day per week face-to-face service to each ward within the 
Area, although this may be altered during the lifetime of the contract in response to evidenced 
change in local need. 

Page 135



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

2

This delivery should comprise at least one half day per week per ward of Welfare Rights advice and 
at least one half day per week per ward of Advice work. This must include at least one weekly 
twilight/evening session to enable access to those in full time work, although this can be delivered in 
one of the wards only. 

The service should continue to be offered in the same venues and at the same times as delivered by 
the existing contract. 

In addition to the required services listed above, the South Area Council would welcome the 
introduction of additional formats for work with clients (for example, webchat, use of social media, 
using volunteers, check and send methodologies) although this should not be offered as a 
replacement for the face-to-face service outlined above.  

All staff must also be provided with regular specialist supervision, which could be provided either by 
the employing organisation or ‘bought in’ by a suitable third party organisation where this is not 
possible. 

Target Groups

Residents of all ages who live within the Darfield, Hoyland Milton, Rockingham and Wombwell wards 
who require the advice and support offered by this contract. 

However, the evidence base suggests that although the service offered will be universal, the 
following target groups are disproportionately more likely to require the services offered:

 People in low paid and/or part time work who are reliant on in-work benefits

 People with mental and physical health problems and/or disabilities

 Older people who are dependent on a state pension but who often do not claim additional 
related benefits to which they are entitled

 People whose vulnerability would make it unlikely that they could resolve the issues they 
face without help

Proposal and Justification for Goods / Service 

The initial need for locally based advice and information services was first identified by the South 
Area Council in 2013, when it became apparent from ward based data showed a huge increase in the 
demand for borough-wide welfare rights and citizen’s advice amongst people living in the South 
Area. Further investigation showed that this was due to a number of changing factors, including:  

 An increase in unemployment and under-employment across the Area leaving larger number 
of people reliant on particularly in-work benefits 

 The migration of clients from Incapacity Benefit to Employment Support Allowance and from 
Disability Living Allowance to Personal Independence Payments. 

 The introduction of the ‘Bedroom Tax’

Page 136



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

3

 The move to housing payments made monthly direct to tenants

 The need for those on Housing Benefit (80% of who are in low paid work nationally) to 
contribute towards their housing and Council Tax costs

 A massive increase in those having their benefits sanctioned 

This has led to a number of issues, including:

 A growing number of housing related enquiries around the risk of homelessness.  

 A continued growth in clients seeking help with unmanageable levels of debt, 

 Increasing numbers of clients with poor money management skills combined with a lack of 
resources within support organisations to offer support early on to prevent people reaching 
crisis point

 The unknown impact of the introduction of Universal Credit and a move to all applications 
for in and out of work benefits (including pension related) to be completed online, as well as 
the continuing impact of direct housing payments to tenants. 

Evidence of issues specifically within the South Area:

These national and borough-wide issues are heavily reflected in the statistics from the existing South 
Area Council contract delivered by Barnsley Citizen’s Advice Bureau and BMBC Welfare Rights 
Service, which found that in the 2 years from June 2014-16: 

 39 individuals required urgent help in order to keep their homes

 Local people presented with £1,449,000 of debt which  they could no longer manage and 
which required the negotiation of a formal financial settlement

 Local people were supported to £1,581,000 of largely in-work and health related benefits to 
which they did not know they were entitled

 Over 200 people required help from either the Credit Union or money management support 
in order to budget more effectively

 Over 700 specialist referrals were required to help with the issues presented by local people, 
including solicitors, homeless organisations & housing providers, domestic violence support, 
drug and alcohol support and a range of benefit agencies

Page 137



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

4

Date that Goods / Service Required to be Delivered 

The new Advice Services contract will be required from 1st July 2017, to avoid a break in service 
provision. The current contract is due to end on 30th June 2017. The project currently has two staff; 
one of whom is seconded from BMBC Welfare Rights who would return to a substantive post in this 
section if the advice services contract is not recommissioned or there is a break in the service. The 
other member of staff has been employed by Barnsley Citizens Advice Bureau specifically for this 
contract and would face redundancy if the service was not recommissioned or there was a break in 
service. She would be eligible for TUPE to another provider if the current provider was not 
recommissioned; having been in post for over 2 years. 

Budget 

The cost of the Advice Services contract is £75,000 per annum (a total of £150,000 for the full 2 year 
contract) broken down as follows:

 £74,000 per annum (£148,000 over 2 years) for the employment of staff to provide service 
delivery exclusively to this contract. The staff team employed on this contract must be fully 
qualified and able to demonstrate skills in advice work and in generic welfare rights advice.  

 A figure of £2,000 over 2 years (£1,000 per annum) to cover promotional and venue costs to 
support the delivery of advice services.

 Costs for venues will not be provided because the appointed provider/s would be required 
to use previously negotiated community venues offered as in-kind support by BMBC and 
which are already in use.

Benefits of Proposal 

The Advice Services contract offers the following benefits and added value:

 The existing service (on which this adapted commission proposal is heavily based) has been 
independently assessed in 2016 as having a social value of over £28 for every £1 invested in 
the cost of the contract. This high value is based on the positive contributions made by local 
advice services to reducing anxiety, stress, depression; their impacts on physical health and 
also in the reduction of people becoming homeless as a result of intervention and support.  
This contributes to the Council’s People Achieving Their Potential priority through 
supporting people to become healthier, happier, independent & active.

 This contract provides a highly bespoke and locally delivered service which is heavily 
evidence driven. This enables the help and support offered to be both targeted to very 
localised need and offered at venues which are easily accessible to even vulnerable 
individuals. This contributes to the Council’s Strong and Resilient Communities priority by 
helping customers to contact us more easily and through building stronger individuals who 
are more able to self-help and who will form part of more resilient communities.

Page 138



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

5

 Because this contract provides services which are additional to and complementary to 
mainstream town centre advice provision, these locally based advice services help to reduce 
pressure on mainstream services and reduce waiting times for those needing help. This is 
particularly crucial in dealing with issues like debt, where it is much easier to negotiate help 
for an individual if the debt is not given too much time to grow. This contributes to the 
Council’s Strong and Resilient Communities priority by helping customers to contact us 
more easily, and to the People Achieving Their Potential priority by reducing demand 
through improving access to early help. 

 With town centre based mainstream services moving increasingly towards triage 
assessments and online/web based support, the local Advice Services contract offers 
intensive face-to-face drop-in support for vulnerable clients who may struggle with ‘lighter 
touch’ help. Monitoring information collected by workers on the existing contract found that 
around 50% of clients seen would not have been able to fully or partially self-help because 
they were vulnerable.  This contributes to the Council’s People Achieving Their Potential 
priority through supporting people to become healthier, happier, independent & active.

 In addition, the work done to promote local advice services with community groups will 
enable vulnerable groups in most need of help to access these additional services. The 
current contract has very successfully targeted a range of such groups, including older 
people, people with disabilities, Food Bank users and those at risk of becoming homeless.
This contributes to the People Achieving Their Potential priority by reducing demand 
through improving access to early help. 

 The newly adapted tender specification for this contract now includes a requirement to 
provide practitioner briefing sessions on changes to welfare regulations etc. This will help 
practitioners from a range of locally based statutory and voluntary organisations to refer and 
signpost clients most in need more effectively. This contributes to the People Achieving 
Their Potential priority by reducing demand through improving access to early help. 

In House Provision /Other Contracts  

As described above, both Barnsley Citizens Advice Bureau and BMBC Welfare Rights offer a 
mainstream town centre service. Both services are increasingly oversubscribed; a problem made 
more acute by recently agreed reductions in funding. This is being partially managed through 
increasingly use of triage assessments and a range of online/Check & Send type of support. 
However, those who are more vulnerable and less able to self-help may have to wait for longer 
periods of time to get help with needs which may be urgent. 

In the light of this, the new contract will offer much needed face-to-face support for the most 
vulnerable clients, and in addition will require the contracted provider to work alongside existing 
mainstream services to offer localised delivery which will complement and sensibly align that 
offered in the town centre. 

Page 139



Appendix B
Standard Procurement Documentation – Business 

6

Recommendation

It is recommended that the South Area Council Advice Services contract is recommissioned using the 
amended tender specification. 

Authorised Approval 

Signed ……………………………………………………. (Position)

Date …………………………………………………………..

Page 140


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting of South Area Council held on 2nd December, 2016 (Sac.24.02.2017/2)
	3 Notes of the Ward Alliances (Sac.24.02.2017/3)
	Hoyland Milton and Rockingham Ward Alliance notes January 2017
	Darfield Ward Alliance notes November 2016
	Darfield Ward Alliance notes January 2017
	Wombwell Ward Alliance notes November 2016

	6 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Sac.24.02.2017/6)
	7 Performance Report (Sac.24.02.2017/7)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5a
	Appendix 5b
	Appendix 6a
	Appendix 6b

	8 South Area Council Advice Services (Sac.24.02.2017/8)
	Appendix A Advice Services Tender Specification
	Appendix B Advice Services Business Case


